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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make No representation as to
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
‘GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EE#H &

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director”), | am
pleased to present to shareholders the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2015.

The year ended 30 June 2015 has been both challenging and rewarding for
the Group. With the new Statutory Minimum Wage ("“SWM”) came into force
on 1 May 2015 which raised the minimum hourly wage from HK$30.0 to
HK$32.5 per hour, representing an increment of 8.3%, our cost of services
should inevitably increase, and the gross profit margin of our projects should
inevitably deteriorate. Nevertheless, the Group was able to transfer some
of the increment to our customers. As the competition within the industry
intensified, the margin of the new projects was deteriorated especially at the
commencement of a contract where the Group deployed more resources
to secure stable labour force. To cope with the severe competition, the
management of the Group has used its best endeavor to obtain more
tenders this year particularly in the transportation sector. Having secured a
cleaning and seat amenities restocking service contract for one of the largest
airline operators in Hong Kong, the Group is confident in exploring more
opportunities in this sector. We should also focus our resources in securing
more Government related projects in Hong Kong due to its contract size and
stable payment record.

The management of the Group has also increased our effort to capture the
potential opportunities in the environmental services markets in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). During the financial year ended 30 June 2015,
the Group has already set up subsidiaries in the PRC which will be used as
the operating vehicle in the PRC and it is expected the Group will begin to
generate turnover from the PRC region in the coming years.

Taken into account our enhanced brand recognition, corporate governance
and service quality together with our expansion in the PRC, it is expected that
we are able to differentiate our Group with our competitors.

RESULTS

During the year ended 30 June 2015, we generated revenue of
approximately HK$202.2 million, which represented an increase of
approximately 4.7% over the revenue for the year ended 30 June 2014
(2014 approximately HK$193.1 million).

The gross profit decreased by approximately 12.2% from approximately
HK$27.0 million for the year ended 30 June 2014 to approximately HK$23.7
million for the year ended 30 June 2015.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$27.2 million for the
year ended 30 June 2015 as compared to the net profit of approximately
HK$13.1 million for the year ended 30 June 2014,
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT =E#H&E

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2015 (2014 nil).

PROSPECTS

Despite the fierce market competition in the environmental and cleaning
service industry, the increasing trend to outsource the environmental and
cleaning services and the increasing number of commercial and residential
properties requiring environmental and cleaning services will both stimulate
the growth of the environmental services industry. We will place more
resources to obtain the public tenders and also to expand our business in the
PRC region.

As set out in the Hong Kong Blueprint for Sustainable Use of Resources
2013-2022 by the Environment Bureau, the Hong Kong Government targets
to reduce the municipal solid waste disposal rate by 40% per capita by
2022, which would be a favorable policy to the waste management industry
and create more opportunities for the Group to further expand our waste
management and disposal and recycle services.

In fact, we are confident the Hong Kong Government environmental palicy
shall prowde new business opportunities to the Group. Together with our
lans to expand our geograph|ca| coverage into the PRC and our
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EXE[EFTsm R 7

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Environmental and Cleaning Services

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of environmental services
which include the provision of cleaning and related services for (i) public area
and office cleaning services which involve cleaning of public areas, carpets,
floors, toilets, changing rooms, lifts and escalators and emptying of garbage
bins at commercial buildings, residential complexes, shopping arcades,
hotels and their tenants and public transport facilities such as airport, ferries,
ferry terminal, cargo and logistics centre and depots; (i) overnight kitchen
cleaning services mainly at private club and hotels; (i) external wall and
window cleaning services; (iv) stone floor maintenance and restoration
senvices; (v) pest control and fumigation services; (vi) waste management
and disposal solutions which mainly involve collection, transportation and
disposal of household waste, construction waste and trade waste and sales
of recyclable waste such as paper, metal and plastic waste collected during
our operations; (vii) housekeeping services where we provide housekeeping
services to carry out professional daily housekeeping and cleaning services
at local boutique hotels, hostels and serviced apartments; (vii) secure and
confidential waste destruction for commercial clients; (ix) sanitation solution
for yacht; and (x) cleaning and waste management solution for renovated
apartment.

Auto Beauty Services

On 31 March 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Elite Car Services Limited (the “Acquisition”). Elite
Car Services Limited, through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in auto
beauty services for private cars under its own brand names “Champion Auto
Club” and “E-Car” in Hong Kong. As at 30 June 2015, there were a total of 7
auto beauty centers located at car parking facilities. The auto beauty services
offered by Champion Auto Club and “E-Car” included auto body cleaning
service, premium waxing service, carpet and sofa steaming treatment, auto
compartment cleaning and vacuuming service, coating service and unrivalled
air-purifying service.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE[E5 R 24T

BUSINESS REVIEW RO
Environmental and Cleaning Services BIRRBRERE
Revenue by Service Sector IR 5 ERE 7 B W 7

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by different  TNRZFIZR TR T (A RMIRE NS EZREE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EXE[EFTsm R 7

The Group secured a contract for the provision of cleaning and restocking
bathroom and seat amenities for one of the largest airline operators in Hong
Kong. We view this as a significant milestone, the Group can now explore
more opportunities in the provision of environmental and cleaning services
1o the airline industry, the engagement by one of the largest airline operators
can also strengthen our reputation. During the year, the Group also secured
a significant contract for one of the major cargo and logistic centre in Hong
Kong, doubled the revenue from one of our major transportation customer
in providing cabin attendant service between vessels to and from Hong
Kong and Macau. All these further strengthened our reputation and ability to
provide 24/7 around the clock environmental services.

Revenue from residential and other sector increased slightly mainly due
to renewal of existing contracts on better terms and secure of additional
projects in the financial year. Most of the revenue from other sector is
recurring and service price is reviewable on an annual basis.

Compared to the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group's revenue from
the environmental and cleaning services increased by approximately 3.9%
mainly due to additional contracts secured and regular price increment for
our tenanted services contracts. The Group has taken a more proactive
approach to gain additional market share in the environmental and cleaning
services industry. We have increased our contracting and operational staff
with a view to further enhancing our tendering capabilities for the government
related contracts which the Group had less exposure in the past. Given the
relative large contract size of the government projects, we believe it is in the
best interest of the Group to expand into this sector. We have also achieved
certain promising results as the Group has secured two additional residential
service contracts for the housing sector in Hong Kong.

Service Contracts

Contractor contracts are service contracts entered into mainly with property
management companies, owners of various building premises, operators
of hotels and public transportation facilities as well as government and
academic institutions and are awarded to us through competitive tendering.
Our major service contracts cover services provided in some designated
sectors which include: (a) commercial sector which includes mainly office
buildings, shopping arcades and the tenanted areas therein; () hospitality
sector which includes hotels, hostel and service apartments; (c) residential
sector which includes residential complexes and residential floors therein;
(d) transportation sector which includes public transportations and (e) other
sector which includes government and academic institutions and private
clubs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE[E5 R 24T

For the year ended 30 June 2015, we had a total of 77 contracts from the
abovementioned five sectors representing an increase of approximately 5.5%
from 73 contracts for the year ended 30 June 2014, With the increase in
number of contract on-hand, the Group was able to provide more services
for the tenant in the tenanted area or any other ad hoc cleaning service in the
commercial and residential sectors for the year ended 30 June 2015,

Auto Beauty Services

During the period from the date of the Acquisition to 30 June 2015,
Champion Auto Club and E-Car contributed revenue of approximately
HK$1.6 million to the Group's total revenue. Due to early termination by
landlords of parking lots leases where we operated auto beauty centres,
the total number of auto beauty centres operated by Champion Auto Club
and E-Car reduced from 8 auto beauty centres at the acquisition date on
31 March 2015 to 7 auto beauty centres as at 30 June 2015, which further
drop to 5 auto beauty centres at the date of this report. Together with the
fierce competition from other competitors, Champion Auto Club still has not
achieved any positive results since the date of completion of our acquisition.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EXE[EFTsm R 7

Looking forward, we would strengthen our marketing effort in hope to expand
our market shares in Government sector and continue to consolidate our
resources to focus on high value customers to bring in additional revenue by
cross-selling other cleaning and waste management services to our existing
customers. We believe this strategy may not only improve our revenue
per customer but also increase our profit margin as we could leverage
our existing manpower to perform services at location where we already
have presence. We would continue to streamline our waste management
and disposal services by redeploying our waste collection fleet to higher
margin customers. To lower the cost of room attendants for the hospitality
sector, we shall conduct additional training and seminars. Our success in
the commercial sector shall allow the Group to build up reference for the
provision of environmental services for the premium commercial buildings.

To further enhance our revenue stream, we would also use our best
endeavour to expand our geographical coverage from Hong Kong to the
PRC region.

Auto Beauty Services

The Group would use its best endeavour to improve the performance of
Champion Auto Club and E-Car including but not limited to enhancing the
variety and quality of services provided, improving the geographical coverage
and also enhancing the business strategy in sales and marketing. The Group
will utilise the existing customer network from our environmental services and
cleaning services and perform some cross selling and promotion to improve
the sales of Champion Auto Club and E-Car. In addition, we would also place
more marketing effort with a view to enhancing our brand recognition in Hong
Kong. We will also focus on high value customers who are more willing to
spend on their luxury cars in order to generate more revenue. In the long run,
we will strive to open more auto beauty centres at the prime locations in Hong
Kong. We are seeking potential strategic partners who have the capability
and experience in providing cleaning and auto beauty services in the
People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”) with a view to expanding our coverage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE[E5 R 24T

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group reported a revenue of
approximately HK$202.2 million (2014: approximately HK$193.1 million),
representing an increase of approximately 4.7% mainly due to (i) increase in
the revenue from the environmental and cleaning services by approximately
HK$7.5 million to HK$200.6 million (2014 approximately HK$193.1 million)
as a result of regular price increment for own tenanted services contracts
and successful bid of services contracts for one of the largest airline carriers,
commercial complexes and transportation services providers in Hong Kong;
(i) contribution of the revenue of approximately HK$1.6 million from the newly
acquired auto beauty services business in April 2015,

More details of the Group’s performance for the year by business segments
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Cost of Services, Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s cost of services increased by approximately 7.5% to
approximately HK$178.5 million (2014: approximately HK$166.1 million)
for the year ended 30 June 2015 as compared with that for the previous
year. Our cost of services primarily comprised direct wages, direct overhead
expenses, consumables and sub-contracting fees. The cost of services in
proportion to the Group’s revenue increased by 2.8%. With the effective of
MW, the cost of direct wages should inevitably increase.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EXE[EFTsm R 7

Impairment Loss on Goodwill

At 30 June 2015, before impairment testing, goodwill of approximately
HK$9.2 million was allocated to the cash generating unit of the newly
acquired auto beauty business (“AUTO CGU"). Due to early termination of
several auto beauty centers and restructure of the business model since the
acquisition of the auto beauty business by the Group on 31 March 2015,
the management have consequently determined to write off the goodwiill
allocated to AUTO CGU amounting to approximately HK$8.5 million during
the year. No other write-down of the assets of AUTO CGU is considered
necessary. The impairment test has been referenced to the valuation report
prepared by Norton Appraisals Limited, an independent professional valuer.

Administrative Expenses and Other Losses

The Group’s administrative expenses and other losses increased by
approximately HK$24.3 million to approximately HK$39.5 million (2014
approximately HK$15.2 million) for the year ended 30 June 2015. The
increase was mainly due to (i) one-off forfeiture of a deposit of HK$4.5 million
paid for the possible acquisition of Hong Kong Automobile Restoration
Group Limited which was terminated on 9 January 2015 as announced
by the Company on the same date; (i) increase in legal and professional
fees by approximately HK$6.4 million mainly incurred as a results of the
acquisition of the car beauty business, potential expansions of the Group’s
businesses and initial set up costs for the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC;
(i) additional administrative expenses for the newly acquired car beauty
business by approximately HK$1.9 million, the acquisition was completed
in April 2015; (iv) impairment losses on deposits and other receivables of
approximately HK$1.2 million and approximately HK$4.5 million for purchase
of a Hong Kong — Shenzhen Bay cross border car plate and for purchase of
motor car cleaning materials respectively; and (v) increase in staff costs for
directors and administrative staff of approximately HK$1.8 million as a result
of the increase in the number and salaries and allowances of directors and
administrative staff for further development of the existing businesses and
new development of the newly acquired car beauty businesses and future
potential development of businesses in PRC.

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group incurred a net loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$27.2 million for the year ended 30 June 2015 as
compared to the net profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$13.1 million for the year ended 30 June 2014. The
deterioration from the net profit for the year ended 30 June 2014 to the net
loss for the year ended 30 June 2015 was primarily attributable to decrease
in gross profit and other income and gains, increase in administrative
expenses and other losses and recognition of the impairment loss on
goodwill with the factors described above.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 17 June
2013. The future plans for use of the net proceeds raised at the date of the
listing of the Company as stated in the prospectus of the Company dated
7 June 2013 (the "Prospectus”) were derived from the Group’s reasonable
estimation of the future market conditions based on the information available
at the time of preparing the Prospectus and as at the date of this annual
report, the Group does not anticipate any changes to the use of proceeds
stated in the Prospectus. During the period between the date of the listing of
the Company and 30 June 2015 (the “Period”), the net proceeds were used
for the following purposes:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EXE[EFTsm R 7

Comparison of Business Plan with Actual Business ¥EiHEIEEREREENLE
Progress

The following is a comparison of the Group's business plan as setoutinthe R ERFIEAEBNERKTEEHEEZ —-F
Prospectus with actual business progress for the year ended 30 June 2015 —RHENA=THIFENEREKERLE
LU

Actual business

Business plan as set out in the Prospectus progress up to
BRERFENEEE 30 June 2015
EE-Z-0F
Business strategy Implementation plan NA=ZTHW
E37 S Biestal BEREBER
Continue to expand our — To acquire additional specialized vehicles and cleaning equipment Completed
waste management - FESMNBE R B R B RRE BT
and disposal team
HEFEFRRPINEYEIE - To recruit additional technical staff In Progress
N e & B - RSN R RIE T HEITHR
Strengthen our — To advertise our services on online platform Completed
established position - B LTS ERMARS B 5K
in the environmental
services industry in — To advertise our services in magazines and newspapers In Progress
Hong Kong - A MR E B E R8RS TR
ZERMEBBRIRRS
H AL A HAL — To continue to promote our services by direct mail and Completed
distribution of leaflet and brochure
- DAE B0 R B B I M S 05 AR B HE R B MR AR 7S (w7159
— To improve the existing website of the Company with Completed
petter navigation, design and photo
- WERARNR AN - UREEEER - R RER w159
— To employ additional staff for the contracting team Completed
- FINERANERE T B5ERK
— To recruit additional senior operation staff Completed
- FSMBIEEREER T B5ERK
— To purchase additional and upgrade our equipment and machinery and Completed

information technology system to enhance our operational efficiency

- BINBE R R FINRE LA RERBE RS - MRTHEEEM DK
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Business plan as set out in the Prospectus

Actual business
progress up to

HBRERE N EKTE 30 June 2015
BEE-Z—8F
Business strategy Implementation plan NA=ZTHW
E3 7S BEistal BERXBER
Continue to expand and — To provide training to our staff and enhance facilities of Completed
develop our services our training center
within the hospitality - BB TREEIIREABMEIIF ORIRE E5ERK
sector
BENEEXETRERE - To promote our service to our target customer within Completed
A AR TS the hospitality sector
- AEEEAN B REPEER MRS B
— To recruit more room attendants Completed
-BEFZEKE 2588
Expand the range of our — To acquire waste shredding machines Completed
senvice offerings — SR ETE B 5EK

BABMR AR EE

= -

;—' %@‘recruit stlaﬁ and proVide training on waste
separation and recycling ”
- 255 B T W iR A 18 KR m sl

\

- é}(\ L R RE S R Y )5 B
Yy, P

Completed
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The shares of the Company is listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. The
Company's share capital comprises only ordinary shares.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group had financed its operations
and capital requirements through operating cash flows, net proceeds from
the IPO, debt and equity financing.

On 20 November 2014, the Company issued an unlisted corporate bond
at a principal amount of HK$10 million which is unsecured, bears a fixed
interest rate of 7% per annum and is fully redeemable by the Company after
7 years from the issue date at its principal amount of HK$10 million. Details
of the issue of the unlisted corporate bond are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 20 November 2014,

On 20 December 2014, the Company issued 2,000,000,000 unlisted
warrants at the subscription price of HK$0.02 per warrant, which entitled the
holder of each warrant to subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company
at an exercise of HK$0.166 per share at any time during a period of 12
months commencing from the date immediately after the three months from
the issue date. No warrant has been exercised up to the date of this report.
Details of the issue of the unlisted warrants are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 29 October 2014, 20 November 2014 and 21
December 2014.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$45.4 million (30 June 2014: approximately HK$37.4
million). The increase was mainly attributable to the proceeds from the issue
of the unlisted bond and the issue of the unlisted warrants as mentioned
above.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$69.5 million (30 June 2014 approximately HK$52.9 million) and current
ratio of approximately 2.73 (30 June 2014 approximately 2.9) which remain
healthy.

As at 30 June 2015, the total debt of the Group were approximately HK$10.3
million (30 June 2014: approximately HK$4.8 million) which include bank
borrowing of approximately HK$0.3 million (30 June 2014 approximately
HK$1.3 million), obligations under finance leases of approximately HK$0.8
million (30 June 2014: approximately HK$3.5 million) and unlisted corporate
bond of approximately HK$9.2 million (30 June 2014: HK$NIl). The gearing
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ratio of the Group (calculated by dividing total debt by total equity) as at 30
June 2015 was approximately 13.4% (30 June 2014: approximately 7.5%).
The increase was mainly due to the issue of the unlisted corporate bond at a
net consideration of approximately HK$9.2 million which was partially offset
by the increase in the equity base by approximately HK$39.5 million from the
issue of the unlisted warrants during the year ended 30 June 2015.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group is in a strong and healthy financial
position and has sufficient resources to support its operations and meet its
foreseeable capital expenditures and expansion.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its transactions,
assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market
practices and formulated on the basis of performance and experience of the
employees. The salary and related benefits of the employees are rewarded
ona performance related basis and the general remuneration structure of the
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As at 30 June 2015, the Group had bank deposits of approximately HK$7.7
million (30 June 2014 approximately HK$8.9 million) pledged to banks as
security for due performance under environmental service contracts and
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

(a) Performance Bond

RZTE—RFNA=1+8  AEBERITER
#7,700,0008 T ( ZT—MNFAA=+H : 4
8,900,000/ L) B THR1T - FREZREITR
RIBREE LN RBETFAEERITEERER o

BARRR
(a) EAIRE

Guarantees on performance bonds in respect

HYER

of environmental service contracts

BIRIRRIS A HBAIRE

2015 2014
—E-HF —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
8,874

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued
for due performance under several environmental service contracts.
As at 30 June 2015, fixed deposits of approximately HK$7.7 million
(approximately HK$8.9 million) were pledged to banks as security for
pankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued.

(b) Litigations

During the reporting period, the Group may from time to time be
involved in litigations conceming personal injuries by its employees or
third party claimants. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group had no
any significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations as all
potential claims made by these employees and third party claimants
are accounted for in the unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements and covered by insurance protection.

Information on Employees

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had 810 permanent staff in Hong Kong.
Total staff costs and related expenses (including Directors’ remuneration)
for the year ended 30 June 2015 increased by approximately 23.4% to
approximately HK$122.1 million over that for the previous year. The increase
was mainly due to (i) employment of more on-site staff as a result of additional
service contracts secured during the year and the expansion of the Group in
order to secure more Government related projects which the Group has less
exposure in the past; and (i) inflation in the on-site staff cost and the effective
of new SMW in May 2015.
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Significant Investment Held

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group did not have any significant
investment.

Plans for Potential Expansions in the PRC

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 12 January 2015, in
view of a great potential market in the PRC, the Group intends to diversify
the income stream of the Group by expanding its existing environmental
and cleaning services and engaging in supply chain management and
trading business in related areas in the PRC. If opportunities arise, the Group
may also expand its auto beauty services in the PRC. In February 2015,
the Group’s two wholly owned subsidiaries have jointly set up a limited
partnership with registered capital of RMB$10,000,000 (the “Partnership”)
in the PRC to pursue potential expansion of abovementioned businesses
in the PRC. As of the date of this report, the Partnership did not acquire
any abovementioned businesses in the PRC. The Group is still striving to
seek potential acquisitions and strategic partners that will have a capability
and experience to make a valuable contribution to the development of the
abovementioned businesses in the PRC.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Affiliated Companies

h 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire

[0 beauty services, mcludlng auto detalllng $erV|ces under its own brand
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EXL SR EEAEER

DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board currently consists of seven Directors
comprising three executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Kit (“Mr. Chan”), aged 32, was appointed as executive
Director, chairman (the “Chairman”) of the Company, authorised
representative (the “Authorised Representative”) of the Company and
compliance officer with effect from 16 June 2015. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor
Degree in Information System and a Master Degree of Accounting from Curtin
University of Technology, Australia. Mr. Chan is currently the international
business development manager of Pearl Oriental Oil Limited (stock code:
632), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also the executive
Director, chairman, authorised representative and compliance officer of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148), a company listed
on the GEM. Mr. Chan is also a financial secretary to Shenzhen — Hong
Kong Youth Exchange Promotion Association Limited. Mr. Chan is currently
a company secretary of Titanium Group Limited, a company quoted on
OTC Bulletin Board in the US. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in [T,
accounting, finance, corporate governance, strategic planning, as well as
merger and acquisition.

Ms. Wong Chi Yan (“Ms. Wong”), aged 34, was appointed as an
executive Director, Authorised Representative and company secretary of
the Company with effect from 16 June 2015. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree in Accounting from Hong Kong Baptist
University. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. She has extensive experiences in auditing, accounting
and financing as well as merger and acquisition. Ms. Wong is the company
secretary and authorized representative of U-RIGHT International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 627). She is an executive director, the company
secretary and the authorised representative of Aurum Pacific (China) Group
Limited (stock code: 8148), a company listed on the GEM. She is also
an independent non-executive director of Co-Prospenity Holidays Limited
(Stock code: 707). She was an independent non-executive director of
Prosten Technology Holdings Limited (stock code:8026) during the period
25 June 2015 to 8 October 2015.

Mr. Cao Zhiwen (“Mr. Cao”), aged 41, was appointed as Director and
was designated as executive Director and Vice-Chairman of the Company on
7 August 2014. Mr. Cao has approximately 18 years' experience in business
management and commercial investment. Mr. Cao used to study at the
Department of Computer Science of Jiaxi Normal University and completed
the EMBA program of Tsinghua University. Mr. Cao is currently the chairman
of the board of Shenzhen Habala Asset Management Company Limited. Mr.
Cao used to be the chairman of the board of Shenzhen Xilang Science and
Technology Company Limited and Shenzhen Habala Recreational Vehicle
Investment and Development Company Limited.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (“Mr. Chui”), aged 58, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director, chairman of audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) of the Company, chairman of Remuneration Committee
and chairman of nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of
the Company with effect from 16 June 2015. He is a practising Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong and has worked in the accounting industry
for 35 years. He has obtained a Bachelor's degree in Commerce (Major
in Accounting) from Concordia University and is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chui is an
independent non-executive director of each of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited (stock code: 417), National Arts Entertainment and
Culture Group Limited (stock code: 8228), Wing Lee Property Investments
Limited (stock code: 864), Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code:
8148) and is a non-executive director of Addchance Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3344), all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is currently
the Commissioner of the Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol and a member of the
Road Safety Campaign Committee of the Road Safety Council. He is also a
director of a number of private companies and associations.

Mr. Chow Chun Hin Leslie (“Mr. Chow”) was appointed as an

independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from 23
5 ber 2015. Mr. Chow, aged 32, possesses extensive experience
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Mr. Chen Kwok Wang (“Mr. Chen”), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 19 November 2014,
Mr. Chen, obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from
the University of Hong Kong in 1997 and a Master of Laws from Renmin
University of China in 2006. Mr. Chen has been admitted as a solicitor of
the High Court in 2005 and has been a partner of Messrs. Patrick Mak &
Tse since August 2010. Before that, Mr. Chen has worked at the regulation
division of the Stock Exchange since October 1993 to December 2000 and
his last position was senior manager. Mr. Chen has worked as manager
of the intermediaries supervision of Securities and Futures Commission
from January 2001 to September 2002, Mr. Chen is also a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chen is currently
an independent non-executive director of Fujian Start Group Co., Ltd ({g
FEEEFE AR AR, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600734) and an independent non-executive director of Wai Chi
Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1305).

Mr. Chan Chi Tong, Kenny (“Mr. Chan”), aged 56, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
26 September 2014. He has more than 30 years' working experience. Mr,
Chan is a partner of Messrs. Wat & Co., Solicitors since October 1996.
He has worked as a Deputy Manager in The China & South Sea Bank
Limited from October 1981 to February 1984, as Credit Officer in Amro
Bank N.V. from March 1984 to July 1986, and as a Deputy Manager in Sun
Hung Kai Properties Limited from August 1986 to December 1992. He is
a solicitor of the High Court of First Instance of Hong Kong and a member
of the Law Society of Hong Kong. He is also associates of the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators (England). He also sat as a Committee Member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries from 1995 to 2001. Mr. Chan
holds a Higher Diploma in Company Secretaryship & Administration from
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master of Science Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Bath, a Postgraduate Certificate in Law
from the University of Hong Kong, and a Master of Law Degree in Chinese
and Comparative Law from the City University of Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

QOur senior management comprises our executive Directors, our company
secretary and the following persons:

Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel (“Mr. Wong”), aged 40, was appointed
an executive Director of the Company on 28 May 2013 and retired as an
executive Director of the Company on 30 October 2014, He is currently the
director of Pollution & Protection Services Limited (“PPS") an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, since March 2010. Mr. Wong oversees
our contracting department and is primarily responsible for setting sales
and marketing strategies for our business of environmental and cleaning
services. Together with other members of the senior management, Mr, Wong
oversees all aspects of the operations of the Group. Mr. Wong joined our
Group in September 2009 as an assistant to general manager. Mr. Wong
has around 11 years of experience in sales and marketing. He graduated
from Simon Fraser University, Canada in 1998, with a Bachelor Degree
in Arts and obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration from the
University of San Francisco, the United States, in 2005.

Mr. Yeung Yat Chuen (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 33, is the financial controller
of the Company. He is primarily responsible for seeking potential acquisition
target for the Group's expansion, overseeing the Group’s daily operation and
performance, and ensuring the Group’s compliance with Listing Rules during

E én Before joining the Group, he had worked in corporate finance
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Pollution & Protection
Services Limited (“PPS”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is one of the major comprehensive environmental service
providers in Hong Kong providing a comprehensive range of cleaning
and related services such as public area and office cleaning, overnight
kitchen cleaning, waste management and disposal, external wall and
window cleaning, stone floor maintenance and restoration, pest control and
fumigation as well as housekeeping.

The activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group'’s performance for the year by operating segment is
set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 June 2015 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 53 of this report. The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$0.2 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company's share capital during the year are
set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 57 and
58 of this report and Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.,

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2015, the Company has no reserves available for distribution
to shareholders in accordance with the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the
Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company.

As at 30 June 2014, the Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounting to approximately HK$11,205,000 calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands and
the Articles of Association of the Company.

DEBENTURE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

On 20 November 2014, the Company issued an unlisted corporate bond
at a principal amount of HK$10 million which is unsecured, bears a fixed
interest rate of 7% per annum and is fully redeemable by the Company after
7 years from the issue date at its principal amount of HK$10 million. Details
of the issue of the unlisted corporate bond are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 20 November 2014. '
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During the year, none of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any interest in any of the Group’s five

FR-MEBEENES  RENBEALHEM
BERBEZMAEERNRE D EITRALYIA
PEEAEBRAATF - DEBRHERE

largest customers, subcontractors and suppliers.

Executive Directors
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Mr. Chan Wai Kit
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Ms. Wong Chi Yan
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Mr. Wang Li
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Mr. Cao Zhiwen
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Mr. Zhang Chenglin
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Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan
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Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel
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Ms. Hung Sui Hing, Lilian
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Non-executive Directors
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Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria
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Mr. Woo Yik Man
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RZZE-—RFERNATBEZE

appointed on 16 June 2015
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
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Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert — appointed on 16 June 2015
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All newly appointed executive directors and independent non-executive
directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the Group
which is not terminable by the relevant employer within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan (“Mr. Fan”) resigned as the chairman, an
executive Director, a member of the remuneration committee and a member
of the nomination committee of the Company due to his personal health
reasons with effect from 2 December 2014, Mr. Fan has confirmed that
he has no disagreements with the Board and there are no other matters
relating to his resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the Stock
Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Hung Sui Hing, Lilian (‘Ms. Hung”) resigned as executive Director
with intention to devote more time to pursue other business commitments
and engagements with effect from 26 September 2014. Ms. Hung, has
confirmed that she has no disagreements with the Board and there are
no other matters relating to her resignation that need to be brought to the
attention of the Stock Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria ("Ms. Fan”) resigned as non-executive Director
1o pursue other business and personal interests with effect from 26
September 2014. Ms. Fan has confirmed that she has no disagreements
with the Board and there are no other matters relating to her resignation
that need to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth (“Mr. Ho") resigned as independent non-
executive Director, chairman of the nomination committee and members of
the remuneration committee and audit committee with intention to devote
more time to pursue his other business commitments and engagements
with effect from 26 September 2014. Mr. Ho has confirmed that he has no
disagreements with the Board and there are no other matters relating to his
resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange
and the shareholders of the Company.
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Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick (“Mr. Tong”) resigned as independent non-
executive Director, chairman of the remuneration committee and members
of the nomination committee and audit committee with intention to devote
more time to his family and other personal commitments with effect from 26
September 2014. Mr. Tong has confirmed that he has no disagreements
with the Board and there are no other matters relating to his resignation
that need to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Lo Wing Sang (“Mr. Lo”") resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the audit committee, a member of the remuneration
committee and a member of the nomination committee of the Company to
devote more time to his other business commitments and engagements
with effect from 19 November 2014. Mr. Lo has confirmed that he has no
disagreements with the Board and there are no other matters relating to his
resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange
and the shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Wang Li (“Mr. Wang") resigned as an executive Director, the chairman,
the compliance officer, an authorised representative, a member of the
remuneration committee and a member of the nomination committee of
the Company with effect from 14 February 2015 to devote more time to
his other business commitments. Mr. Wang has confirmed that he has no
ents with the Board and there are no other matters relating to his
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the Group as
at the date of this report are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” section on pages 21 to 24 of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, conceming the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transaction”, no
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration is determined with reference to the nature of job, performance,
qualifications and experience of individual employees, as well as the result
of the Group and the market trend. The Group carries out staff performance
appraisal once a year and the assessment result is used for salary reviews
and promotion decisions.

The Group recognises the importance of staff training and thus regularly
provides interal and external training for its staff to enhance their skills and
knowledge. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference
to the duties and level of responsibilities of each Director, the remuneration
policy of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.

SHARE OPTIONS
(1) Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme has been adopted to provide incentive or
reward to eligible persons for their contribution to the Group and/or
to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds any equity interest. Details of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share options have been granted pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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(2) Share Warrants Issued in the Year

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
29 October 2014, 20 November 2014 and 21 December 2014 (the
‘Announcements”) in relation to, among other things, subscription of
unlisted warrants and the terms defined in the Announcements have
the same meanings when used in this paragraph. On 29 October 2014
and 20 November 2014, the Company entered into the Subscription
Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement with the Subscribers
respectively, under which the Company has conditionally agreed to
issue and the Subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe at
the Subscription Price of HK$0.02 per Warrant for an aggregation
of 2,000,000,000 Warrants conferring the rights to subscribe for an
aggregate of 2,000,000,000 Warrant Shares (with aggregate nominal
value of HK$200,000) at the Exercise Price of HK$0.166 per Warrant
Share (as adjusted by the share subdivision of the Company which
became effective on 17 November 2014). The subscription rights
attaching to the Warrants will be exercisable at any time during a
period of 12 months commencing from the date immediately after
three months from the date of the Subscription Agreement. The
Subscribers are eight individual investors and, to the best knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, the Subscribers and their ultimate beneficial owner(s) are
third parties independent of and not connected with the Company
and its connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules). The
reason for the Subscription is that the Subscription provides a good
opportunity to strengthen the Company’s financial position and in the
event the Subscribers fully exercise their subscription rights attaching
to the Warrants, funds to be received may cater for future needs for
its general working capital and business  developments. The Warrant
Shares will be allotted and issued under the General Mandate granted
to the Directors at the annual‘geneial_ﬁ]eeting of the Company held
on 30 October 2014 sub{e:;; to. i 'txbf 2,000,000,000 new
Shares. The closing pri : ( d usted by the share
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2015, none of the Directors and the chief executive and their
respective associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short
posftions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within of the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”)),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Rules
5.46 10 5.68 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities On the Growth
Enterprise Market (*GEM”") of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2015, no person other than certain
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any members of the Group.
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Name of Total Percentage of

the company number of total issued

in which ordinary Long/short share capital

Name of Shareholder interestis held  Capacity shares position  in the Company
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Mr. Zhao Han The Company Beneficial owner (Note 1) 1,200,000,000 Long 12.00%
izl /NG EamA A1) e

China New Energy Power  The Company Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) 490,000,000 Long 4,90%
Group Limited ART] XprtlEEER () =y

The Company Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) 211,000,000 Long 2.11%
/NG| Ryt & B (fE2) HE

Ace Resources Investment  The Company Beneficial owner (Note 3) 700,000,000 Long 7.00%
Limited YN BB A )

Wang Ying The Company Beneficial owner 969,472,040 Long 9.69%
AUN] BHEBA HE

WHERERAT FH2015 33



DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE2 {4

Notes:

1. Ms. Gao Lili is the spouse of Mr. Zhao Han, Ms. Gao Lili is deemed to be interested in 12%
interests in the share capital of the Company under the SFO.

2. China New Energy Power Limited directly holds 100% interest in Source Peak Limited.
China New Energy Power Limited is deemed to be interested in 4.90% interests in the
share capital of the Company which are beneficially owned by Source Peak Limited under
SFO.

China New Energy Power Limited indirectly holds 100% interest in Legito Company Limited.
China New Energy Power Limited is deemed to be interested in 2.11% interests in the
share capital of the Company which are beneficially owned by Legito Company Limited

under SFO.

3. Ace Resources Investment Limited is 100% owned by Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul (“Mr.
Suen’), Mr. Suen is deemed to be interested in 7.00% interests in the share capital of the
Company under the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SHARES

During the year ended 30 June 2015, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
e knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued

al was held by the public during the year ended 30 June 2015.

lich would oblige the
xisting Shareholders.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

During the reporting period and up to date of this report, none of the
Directors, controling shareholders and their respective associates as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules is interested in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Vessels Cleaning Service Contract

On 21 October 2014, PPS entered into the Vessels Cleaning Service
Contract ("Services Contract”) with Niko Cleaning Services Limited (“Niko”),
pursuant to which PPS agreed to outsource and engage Niko to provide
certain vessels cleaning services for Customer X in Macau for a period of two
years commencing from 1 November 2014 to 31 October 2016.

For the 30 June 2015, the total amount of vessels cleaning services fee paid
under the Services Contract was approximately HK$3,400,000, which did
not exceed HK$3,500,000 (“Annual Cap”). The vessels cleaning services
fee was determined by PPS and Niko after arm'’s length negotiations with
reference to (i) the historical transaction amounts in relation to the vessels
cleaning senvices between Customer X and Niko; (i) the historical transaction
amounts in relation to the vessels cleaning services between Customer X and
PPS; (iii) the historical transaction amounts in relation to the vessels cleaning
services between PPS and Niko; (iv) the scope of the vessels cleaning
services; and (v) the prevailing growth in labour cost and other expected
costs including material and equipment costs.

Niko is owned as to 60% by Mr. Fan shek Cheong Allan (“Mr. Fan”), and
40% by Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria (“Ms. Fan”), Mr. Fan was the chairman,
an executive director and a substantial shareholder of the Company until 2
December 2014 and the father-in-law of Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel (‘Mr.
Wong”), who was an executive director and a substantial shareholder of
the Company until 30 October 2014 and 2 December 2014 respectively.
Ms. Fan was a non-executive director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company until 26 September 2014 and 2 December 2014 respectively,
the daughter of Mr. Fan and lawful wife of Mr. Wong. Therefore, Niko is a
connected person of the Company for the purpose of Chapter 20 of the
GEM Limited Rules. Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under the
Service Contract and transaction contemplated thereunder constitutes a
continuing connected transaction of the Company.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the
continuing connected transaction and have confirmed that the continuing
connected transaction were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The Company's auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Review of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transaction disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors' letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has Comphed with the disclosure
Juirements in accordance with Ohapter @_O%sf ‘the G.El\/l Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” section on pages 38 to 50 of this report.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group does not have material events after the end of the reporting
period.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited which shall retire
and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A
resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited and to authorise
the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Wai Kit
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 October 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in order to uphold the transparency of the Group and safeguard
interests of the Shareholders.

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 30 June 2015,

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
‘Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Code for the
year ended 30 June 2015, except for the deviations of the following Codes.

(i) Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the year under review, the roles of

chairman and chief executive officer of the Company were performed
by the same executive Directors. At the date of this report, the roles of
Chairman and chief executive officer were performed by the executive
dire

or, Mr. Chan Wai Kit. The Company considered that the
mbination of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer could

independent non-executive D{reotors a&alancmg mechanism existed
so that the interests of th@ha&e

ere was no imminent

Under the Code QI;OVISIO rrman of the Board should

at least annually h<§j m

‘non- executive D|rectors
ctors) without the executive
dler review, the chairman

effectively formulate and implement the strategies of the Company. The -_

S
company considered that under the supervision of its Board and its

were adequately and fairly -
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(i) A.4.1 of the Code stipulates that all non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, all non-
executive directors, including the independent non-executive directors
are not appointed for a specific term. They are, however, subject to
the retirement by rotation and re-election of directors in the articles of
association of the Company. Since their appointment will be reviewed
when they are due for re-election, the Board considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those set out in the
Code.

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH THE GEM LISTING RULES

Non-compliance with the Rules 18.03, 18.48A and 18.49
of the GEM Listing Rules

Pursuant to the Rules 18.03, 18.48A and 18.49 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company is required to publish annual results of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2015 (the "2015 Annual Results”) and despatch the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2015 (the “2015
Annual Report”) to the Shareholders by 30 September 2015.

However, due to more time is required to gather information for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30
June 2015, the Company was unable to publish the 2015 Annual Results
and despatch the 2015 Annual Report to the Shareholders by 30 September
2015.

The Board acknowledges that the delay in the publication of the 2015 Annual
Results and the despatch of the 2015 Annual Report to the Shareholders
constitute non-compliance with the Rules 18.03, 18.48A and 18.49 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms which are the same as the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding them of
the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed securities during
the blackout periods before the publication of announcements of financial
results.
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The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the Directors, AN ARKAESIEHIFTEMEER 288
that all the Directors have complied with the required standards of dealings FHRCIEEHM —BHETREXLHIEELE@E
and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors — BITE AL FHIRTER] o AN TFTA -
throughout the period under review. The Company was not aware of any REZ2 -_Z—AFAA=THILFE  WEHF
non-compliance in this respect throughout the year ended 30 June 2015. Bt T EMETERSEE -

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND EEgpKR  BEREE
CONTRIBUTIONS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable for promoting the success of the Company by ZBEEZE®BUEBET  BERXRNEELGFENEE

directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective manner.  RARIHER » B AHEE R QFEBRKIN - &

Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of the EEHBEFEMITE @ WIAKRR TN REF

Company. Matters reserved for the Board include, but not limited to: BREE  BREFERENFEEEFE(ED
FRAA)

o approval of the Group's long term strategy, policies and annual o HLEAREBRHRERE BRENFEE

budgets; g
e oversight of the Group’s operations and management; s EEARSENEREERER
e approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or practices; o  #t /e SIS FIHEAEAE )

HAEAEENAREE SBEREE
REMEELD)

approval of major chaﬁge_s to the Group's corporate structure,
ement and control structure; «f'/

approval of quarterly, interim and annual results;
responsible for internal contrq\,@nd risk anagement; and
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approval of matters in relati
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As at 30 June 2015, the Board currently comprised seven Directors,
including three executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors and at least one of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise in order to achieve a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance. On 23 September 2015, Mr. Chow Chun Hin
Leslie, was appointed as the independent non-executive Director. As at the
date of this report, the composition of the Board is set out as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Kit (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Chi Yan
Mr. Cao Zhiwen

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert
Mr. Chow Chun Hin, Leslie
Mr. Chan Chi Tong, Kenny
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 21 to 24 of this report.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent. None of the independent non-
executive Directors has served the Company for more than 9 years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions specified in Code
Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which include reviewing the Company’s
corporate goverance policies and practices, the continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, our Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
(including the GEM Listing Rules) and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

R-E-—HFAA=+H BFThLEES
MR BE=ZE2ATEENROEBLIENTE
S E”ﬁ #EA #%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁ%m
BEER FEAHEENMBEEER
E%ﬁ%%@%ﬁymkﬁﬁkﬂ§$@%%
REXR -RN-_T-RAFNA-+=8 FAKHF
AERZEIRBIUIRTES - RAREH
B EEGHAEREINT

BITES
BRIZHE A (E/E)
B5EERL
BRI AE

BIFMITESE

EECKE
JEERE A
PRE =LA
PREAZR S 4

EENERENAREF2IAEEFR4A[ES
KR ERABRE I#BD -

EFEXRBZRAMETAREE(E
% RIGEHEMBARKAAREAR)

SECHR VI 3

ARRERESRBIIFATESRIEAIER
imﬁm%5wﬂmﬁiﬁﬁﬁ¢%@ﬁﬁm
MEERRE - AARRA - 2RIBIIFNTT
EEH/BIAL - MEBIFFRTESCHE
ARBETABERAFEBIF -

EREQWAE

EEEARMTREEETAED I ERATH
B REEMARAREER &m&%ﬁ
EENRAEREHMELRR ADAEH

BARKEATE(BEAIER EMRED MK
KEERARARQRETEEE AT RAR
¥ERBEREE -

gmERERAT FH2015 41



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT {®¥EA&HE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

The Directors are aware of the requirement under the code provision A.6.5
of the Code regarding continuous professional development. During the
year, the Company had arranged a training session to all Directors in regards
to director's duty which was conducted by an external professional firm. In
addition, Directors also reviewed the reading materials related to corporate
governance and regulations that provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices and relevant legal and
regulatory developments.

DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

Each of the executive Directors were appointed without a specific
employment tenure, but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the AGM pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed without
a specific employment tenure, but subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the AGM pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely audit committee (the
‘Audit Committee”), nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Their respective terms of
reference are set out in the Company’s website.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 May 2013 with
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph C3.3 of the Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and internal control
systems, as well as the overall risk management of the Group, reviewing
the consolidated financial statements and the quarterly, interim and annual
reports of the Group, and reviewing the terms of engagement and scope of
audit work of the external auditors.

As at the date of this report, the composition of the Audit Committee is as
follows:

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (Chairman) (appointed on 16 June 2015)

Mr. Chow Chun Hin, Lesile (appointed on 23 September 2015)

Mr. Lai Changming (appointed on 26 September 2014 and resigned on
16 June 2015)

Mr. Chen Kwok Wang (appointed on 19 November 2014)

Mr. Chan Chi Tong, Kenny (appointed on 26 September 2014)

Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus (CA. Canada) (retired on 30 October 2014)

Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP (resigned on 26 September 2014)

Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick (resigned on 26 September 2014)
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 4 August 2014 and resigned on
19 November 2014)

The members of the Audit Committee possess diversified industry
experience and the chairman of the Audit Committee has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the Group the
financial and accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group, its
internal controls and financial reporting matters and the above audited annual
results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2015.

EFEERTERE
ExgoiI=AZ8g EKZES( =&
“ZEZEe)) RAZES([RAZES ) LHF

MEZEE([HFMEZEE
EHBNER - LR
BN AR R o

D BEEEBEARRAE

RENREEEE

W T8)
0

FRERE
ARRER-_ZE—=FRAA -+ \HRIEZ
ZB8e HBEHENSTRECIIERHR

F oo

EZZEENTIERABE(ETRE) R R
EEAREENMEHBERF AR RS
Uk BBRRERE  BHARENGE MR
KEFE - PHRFEERSE - ARFRINEZ
HENN R R MAZ R TIEEE -

RARERY  ELZESHEARNT

ECAE(ER)(NE—RFRATRREEZE)
H%xi%‘ii(b‘é T-RFAA-T=AEZE)
BERLLE(M -T-NFAA-TRAEZELR

fi_fﬁi/\ﬁH'/\E%ﬂ‘B
REZREE(R-B—MHF+—A+NLBREE)

BREREE(R-T—NFNA-+ BEZRT)
REMLE(NEXFMEE) (R=T—NF+A
=—THEMD

R AT (RZE—NFENLA =1~
BHT)
SRTEE(R-_T—mFNAZT/BEHT)
BoKERE(R-T—NFEN\ANBERTRR

—ME+—A+NBEHE)

ENZEBENKEABTRITENER - ME
REEBRIRAESHEETARAAEENER
BR SR o

EREZEGEASENEREDERAEERN
AR B 7 R g st BUR BB ] - AR 79”]?%5
5 ’L&EﬁﬁﬁzEﬁ#ﬁ%E&%@Lﬂﬁ%l@

=
4 o

gEHERERAT FH2015 43



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1 ¥(E8(WME

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. Detalls ~ E#EZ B @R AR EEERITINN @5 © BAX

of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows: ZE8eex s HEBREHY| WO :
Members Attend/ HERE
Eligible to attend EERHE
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert 0/0 EEkL 0/0
Mr. Chow Chun Hin, Lesllie 0/0 [ERRE A 0/0
Mr. Lai Changming 3/3 FEERASEAE 3/38
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang 2/2 [E /e 2/2
Mr. Chan Chi Tong, Kenny 3/3 PRES R 3/3
Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus (CA. Canada) 1/1 REMEE(NZATMESEHE) 1/
Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP 1/1 IR E - KFEMT 1/1
Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick 1/1 BRI E 1/1
Mr. Lo Wing Sang 2/2 BOKE A 2/2
Nomination Committee REERY
The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28 May 2013 ARABERZE—=FH A -+ /\BK LR H

with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of the Code. ZE & » HEESHE R[S TRIFEALS2ERHE
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the F - IRBZEZE €T BRSO BTEES&
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying and nomination of 1% « AR NRAK - WERIRZLESE @ UEGLE
directors and making recommendations to the Board on appointmentandre- EREHEAESAEESRHHEESR -
appointment of Directors.

date of this report, the composition of the Nomination Committee is RARRE HE ?E% SEMAERNT :

ber 2014 _
reS|gned on
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When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination
Committee shall carry out the selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, education background, professional knowledge, personal
integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company's needs and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
Qualified candidates then be recommended to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee held 8 meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting are as

follows:
Members Attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert 0/0

Mr. Chow Chun Hin, Leslie 0/0

Mr. Chan Chi Tong, Kenny 4/4

Mr. Lai Changming 3/3

Mr. Chen Kwok Wang 3/3

Mr. Wang Li 2/2

Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP 3/3

Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick 3/3

Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus 4/4

Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan 5/5

Mr. Lo Wing Sang 0/2

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among other
things, formulating and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration policy, determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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23

ERADMBEFERITREGHE - 1245

RRERE8
BEegm b FEREREIIMT

%8

HERE

EEREE
EECkE 0/0
JESEE 0/0
PREREAE 4/4
HERRLAE 3/3
PR B R S A 3/3
FRIEE 2/2
AR L+ K4 3/3
T E 3/3
REMSTE 4/4
BARERE 5/5
oK A 0/2
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As at the date of this report, the composition of the Remuneration Committee
is as follows:

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (Chairman) (appointed on 16 June 2015)

Mr. Chow Chun Hin, Leslie (appointed on 23 September 2015)

Mr. Chan Chi Tong, Kenny (appointed on 26 September 2014)

Mr. Lai Changming (appointed on 26 September 2014 and resigned on
16 June 2015)

Mr. Chen Kwok Wang (appointed on 19 November 2014)

Mr. Wang Li (appointed on 2 December 2014 and resigned on
14 February 2015)

Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick (resigned on 26 September 2014)

Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP (resigned on 26 September 2014)

Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus (retired on 30 October 2014)

Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan (resigned on 2 December 2014)

Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 4 August 2014 and resigned on
19 November 2014)

The Remuneration Committee held seven meetings during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee meetings
are as follows:

Members Attend/

hui Chi Yun, Robert 0/0
how Chun Hin, Leslie !
Ir. Chan Chi Tong, Kenny
. Lai Changming

r. Chen Kwok Wang
WanglLi =

. Tong Kln ng, Pam@};

Eligible to attend
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings during the  ABEFE L& = Y @R X E @ 35508855 10

year under review is set out below: N
Members Attend/ HERE,/
Eligible to attend RERLRE
Board General =g
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting EEHZ a5 eSS
Executive Directors HITEZE
Mr. Chan Wai Kit (appointed on 16 June 2015) 0/0 00 REGREE(RZE—RF 0/0 0/0
NATAREZAE)
Ms. Wong Chi Yan (appointed on 16 June 2015) 00 0/0 BEEBRL(RZZ—hE 00 00
NATAREZAE)
Mr. Wang Li (appointed on 26 September 2014 17n7 212 IFLER=S—NEF 177 2/2
and resigned on 14 February 2015) NEZHRBEZEIR
WZZ-RE- F+NARE)
Mr. Cao Zhiwen (appointed on 7 August 2014) 32/32 2/2 EEVEE(RZE-—NE 32/32 212
J\AEREZH)
Mr. Zhang Chenglin (appointed on 26 September 2014 28/28 2/2 REMELE(RZE—M4F 28/28 212
and resigned on 16 June 2015) NAZHRBEZER
RZE—RE AT BEE)
Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan (resigned on 16/16 2/2 PRERERIZ-IE 16/16 22
2 December 2014) +ZAZHED)
Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel (retired on 1M 2/2 TREARE(R-Z-—NEF 11/1 22
80 October 2014) TA=TREMR)
Ms. Hung Sui Hing, Liian (resigned on 5/5 00 BT (R=E—NF 5/5 00
26 September 2014) NAZ+RBEHT)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria (resigned on 4/5 0/0 ERBRT(RZE—NE 4/5 00
26 September 2014) NAZ+/RBET)
Mr. Woo Yik Man (appointed on 28 July 2014 4/8 2/2 R (RS —mF 4/8 2/2
and retired on 30 October 2014) TRt N\BEZIR
RZZ-ETA=THRIE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (appointed on 16 June 2015) 0/0 00 EFCEE(RZT—1F 0/0 0/0
NATAREZAE)
Mr. Chow Chun Hin, Leslie 0/0 0/0 BEEE LA (RS —REF 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 23 September 2015) NAZT=REZE)
Mr, Lai Changming (appointed on 26 September 2014 18/28 2/2 BERELE(RN-_T—MF 18/28 212
and resigned on 16 June 2015) NAZTRBEZER
RZE—RE A+ BER)
Mr, Chan Chi Tong, Kenny (appointed on 21/29 2/2 BEREE(R-E—ME 21/29 2/2
26 September 2014) NAZTAREZE)
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang (appointed on 13/21 0/0 BRERLE(R-T—IF 13/21 0/0
19 November 2014) T—ATNBEZE)
Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus (retired on 30 October 2014) 9/10 2/2 KREMLEN-_E—NEF 910 22
TAZTRHRME)
Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP (resigned on 4/5 00 RS KL (R=F 415 00
26 September 2014) —ENA=+ABEME)
Mr, Tong Kin Ping, Patrick (resigned on 45 0/0 BRELRE(RZT-IE 4/5 00
26 September 2014) NAZ+ BEHT)
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 4 August 2014 7/10 0/2 BkELE(RZE—ImF 710 02
and resigned on 19 November 2014) NEMAEZET

RZE—TIF+—AThAEHD)
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All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions
were well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings and written
resolutions are kept by the Company Secretary and are available to all
Directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the Board on the Company's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts and
presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment for the
Group'’s performance, position and prospects. The Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concem.

The Company’s auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (‘HLB"),
acknowledge their reporting responsibilities in the independent auditor's
report to the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2015, which are set out in “‘Independent Auditors Report”
section on pages 51 and 52 of this report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the Year, the Company’s auditors, HLB, charged the Group
ppro><|mately HK$500,000 for the provision of audit services. No non-audit
S\ Were provided by the Company's auditors for the year ended 30
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board's process and
communications among Board members and with the Shareholders and the
management, and advising the Board and its committees on all corporate
governance matters. She reports to the chairman of the Board and/or the
Managing Director and his selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a
Board decision.

The Directors have accessed to the advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. The company secretary took more than 15 hours’
professional training for the year ended 30 June 2015.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

Any one or more Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
py written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the secretary of the Company by mail at 24/F, SUP
Tower, 75-83 King’'s Road, North Point, Hong Kong. The company
secretary of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board's direct responsibilities to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions
and inquiries, to the relevant executive officer of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and
employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to the
Shareholders and the investing public. The Company’s corporate website is
www.hkpps.com.hk.

All corporate communication materials published on the GEM website
(http://www.hkgem.com) are posted on the Company’s corporate website
as soon as practicable after their release. The Company’s constitutional
documents are also available on our website. No significant changes were
made to these documents during the year ended 30 June 2015. Information
on the website shall be updated on a regular basis.

Share registration matters shall be handled for the Shareholders by the
Company's share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22,

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B AR S

BT 3t F 4% 0 4 R 3
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PPS INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PPS Intemational
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 1565, which comprise
the consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 30
June 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B BE RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgements, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstaterment of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider interal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June
2015 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng:
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HERBERAMEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2016 HE —ZT—RAFNA=THILFE

2015 2014
—EB-hfF —E—mEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B e FET FBTT
Revenue Uz 5 202,192 193,098
Cost of services BT AR (178,488) (166,106)
Gross profit EF 23,704 26,992
Other income, other gains and losses and HAplA ~ Btz
impairments NEE A K BE 8 (17,532) 5,674
Selling and marketing expenses HEMMIGHEERY (2,109) (831)
Administrative expenses THRRX (29,336) (15,244)
Finance costs BhE KA g (590) (356)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREEAT(EB), 5 10 (25,863) 16,135
Income tax expenses FriS i 11 (1,386) (3,041)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EHE)R=F (27,249) 13,094
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EEE
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to  E &R E R P IE 218752
profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEGEE 2
translating foreign operations I . ERR (23) -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FREME(ER) WEEE
for the year (27,272) 13,094
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: FEMRFERN(ER), &8
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZ =N (27,205) 13,094
Non-controlling interests Bl G T (44) =
(27,249) 13,094
Total comprehensive (loss)/income forthe year  R3I| A TIEMGFAREE
attributable to: (B518),/Wes 4258
Owners of the Company Vi/NEIE =N (27,228) 13,094
Non-controling interests IR 2 (44) -
(27,272) 13,094
(restated)
(&%)
(Loss)/eamings per share SR (ER), BT
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — EAR R EEGEL) 13 0.13

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB R

As at 30 June 2016 R=—ZFE—HEA=1+H

Obligations under finance leases

Deferred revenue
ax payables

-

t current assets
# &

A FH S e

= =0
ssets less current|

rent liabilites =~
5 under finance lease:

 ERBEME
o BAREAE
§. EREBUARME

2015
—E-RF
Notes HK$’000
BfaE FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - W N 15 15,015
Goodwill RS 16 629
Intangible assets | EE 17 1,062
Deferred tax asset FIEFRIEE = 28 =
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHIERITIFEK 22 1,126
17,832
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 19 67
Trade receivables B S IEWGRIE 20 45,720
Deposits, prepayments and e FEHIEREAMMER
other receivables RIE 21 11,766
Restricted bank deposits SR HIERITIE 5K 22 6,596
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 22 45,425
109,574
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B S IR 23 7,848
Accruals, deposits received and EETER  BEliEE Rk
yther payables H e FRIE 24 22,495
ank borrowing RITIER 263

775
6,579
2,145

40,105

69,469

87,301

2014

—EF—PUF

HK$'000
TAET

11,085

12
2,395

13,492

70
33,470

2,963
6,510
37,382

80,395

4,289
17,085
1,278
2,738

2,078

27,468




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBRRR

Notes

B EE

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company

Share capital
Reserves

R
EARRERAEIEEERR
@
PA
i

31

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

RABGEA NEIEER
IR R

Total equity

#REsD

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 October 2015 and are signed on

behalf by:

Chan Wai Kit
Director

Wong Chi Yan
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

As at 30 June 2016 R=—ZFE—HE,XA=1+H

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
1,000

63,467

64,467

64,467

hEFEMBREAENR_ZE—AFTATER
REFSHERTETIE - Wh FIESAEK

RE

BRER 'BER
E EF

BEM PN LA It S 7 A BT IS IR — 8B o

BHEZERERAT Fi 2015
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRI 2R

As at 30 June 2016 R=—ZFE—HEA=1+H

2015 2014
—E—FHE —T—HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$' 000
BisE FExT FBT
Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment Y - W N 15 -
Interests in subsidiaries LI NSO T 18 =

Current assets REEE
Prepayments and deposits TENRIERIES 21 184
Amounts due from subsidiaries L IENGIE e 18 20
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 22 12,173
12,377

Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals fEstE R 24 79
Amounts due to subsidiaries ARG 18 93
172
Net current assets REBEEFE 12,205
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERABEE 12,205
12,205

apital and reserves
Share capital

fed and authorised for issue, by
% . b »
and are §|gned on behalf by
: X 3

#



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG LN
Equity
Foreign attributable
currency to owners Non-
Share Share Other Contribution  translation Warrant ~ Retained ofthe  controlling Total
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve reseve  eamings  Company interests equity
9%
MER  BRER EEA
Bx  RHEE  HeRE  AAER ffe fff RERN  EEEE FEREE  BREE
HK$000 HK§000 HK000 HK$000 HK8000 HKB000 HK$000 HK000 HK$000 HK§000
T Thn Tk T Thn Tt TR Thn Tt TR
(Note (g) (Note (0] (Note (c)
(Wiake) (&) (Rtzkc)
Asat 1y 2013 R-2-=%+fA-A 1,000 24,360 1,000 21,400 - - 5613 53,378 - 63373
Prot for the year EREH = = = - - - 13,004 13004 - 13004
Total comprehengive income.~ ER2 ARG EE
for the year - - - - - - 18,094 13,09 - 18,094
Divdend pald (Note 12) ERRE(HEH2) - 2000 - - - - - 2000 - (2000
s at 30 June 2014 R-B-MERA=TH
and 1 July 2014 Rh=E-ME+A-R 1,000 22,360 1,000 21,400 - - 18,707 64,467 - 64,467
Lossfor the year EnEE - - = = = -y 1o
Exchange diferences arisngon &30 277
franslating foreign operations R ER - - - - 23 - - 23 - 23)
Total comprehensive loss EREEFEEE
forthe year - - - - 23 - (27,209) (27,228 (4 [27.272)
Issue of warants BT - - - - - 40,000 - 40,000 - 40,000
Trensacioncosisforissue— BTARES 2R BHE
of warrants - - - - - (500) - (600) - (500)
Non-contoling nterests arsng  WEHBATEE 2
on the acquistion FiRER
of a Subsidiary - - - - - - - - (69) (65)
As at 30 June 2015 RZE-RERA=1H 1,000 22,360 1,000 21,400 (23) 39,500 (8,498) 76,739 (99) 76,640
wmERERAT ##®o01s BT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERBETR

Notes:

(@

The amount represented the difference between the nominal amount of shares issued by
the Company and the aggregate amount of share capital of subsidiaries acquired under
common control pursuant to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in preparation
of the listing of the Company's shares on the Growth Enterprise Market (‘GEM”) of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 17 June 2013.

The amount represented the amounts due to shareholders capitalised before the listing of
the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

The amount represented the net proceeds received from the issue of unlisted warrants of
the Company. This reserve will be transferred to the share capital and the share premium
account upon exercise of the unlisted warrants, where the unlisted warrants remain
unexercised at the expiry date, the amount recognised in the warrant reserve will be
released to the retained eamings.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

BifeE

@ ZEEAARRDETEOMNEEEREASHEAR
ABRNR_F—=F A+ LBEEEMERIME
R ([H32FT 1) BIZMR (TAIZIR ) ER TS
E S8 ([E4A ) REHRZEGIE A B SR
GiEppea

b  ZEFEEERARBROEBRAAEIER EHAT#ERT
BN RFRIA

€  HEEABITARFI LMRRERC RIS HE
T - ZRBRERNIE LR T ERERER
ARBORE - WIE LT REREEN I R AT
£ - RRBREERFENERNSESEARL AT -

BERT AT SRR SAR S M TSR — &0 ©




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

i _\éIE %ﬁ% '13,% For the year ended 30 June 2016 i ZE—F—AF A=+ HLFE
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —T—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B e FET FBTT
Operating activities R
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREEAT(E51E), S5 F) (25,863) 16,135
Adjustments for: FEATEIA :
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥12 ~ RE MR EITE 10 6,148 5162
Amortisation on intangible assets T A G 10 56 -
Loss from termination of possible acquisition 4% |FA] sE BB =18 2 18 8 4,500 =
Finance costs &P A 9 590 356
Impairment losses on deposits and e kA v ERGIERE
other receivables 518 8 5,660 -
Impairment loss on goodwil PR EEE 8 8,530 -
Reversal of provision for long service B ol K HARR TS & B A
payment 8 (230) (1,020)
Reversal of provision for severance payment & [E13& B & B 5 8 (595)
Provision for/(reversal) of untaken paid leave  RIZENA &R HA
B, (BE) 10, 8 (691)
Reversal of provision for staff allowances [0 B T B) R IEAL s
and bonus 8 (2,045)
Reversal of provision for claims BB RERE 8 (426) (359)
Wiritten off of property, plant and equipment  ¥1Z ~ M= MR i 3 10 243 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME -« BE k&G
plant and equipment ek 8 (75) 211)
Interest income F2WA (47) (78)
Operating cash flows before movements BEESEBRILE
in working capital ReEmE (582) 16,754
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERLD,(35N) 3 (14)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables Z Sl ERmEOEm), SR (12,246) 4,448
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, prepayments 2% - TEARUIE K& E b fE UL
and other receivables RIF(8N), (13,162) 3,522
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B SR EE i, CRd) 3,559 (1,678)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, deposits EErER « BEldRe REM
received and other payables FE R IEE I, CRid) 4,987 (4,610)
Increase in deferred revenue IRIE U 2532 N 260 -
Cash (used in)/generated from operations esEB) (FTAR) FE£ER S (17,181) 18,422
Interest paid BRFIE (49) (76)
Interest element of finance lease rental EEERSHNF S
payments (83) (280)
Hong Kong profits tax refund EBFEHER 909 27
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENEBEH (2,167) (3,258)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KESEE (FTA)FiEE
operating activities BHEFHE (18,571) 14,840

EBERARAT F®%2015 5O



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁ%%

For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE =&

2015
—E-RF
Notes HK$’000
BfaE FET
Investing activities REEE
Interest received BHFE
Decrease in fixed deposits EHFFORLD
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank R EIRITFERORL(350)
deposits 1,183
Proceeds from disposal of property, ﬁ’%%% 8= KA TS
plant and equipment IE 209
Loss from termination of possible acquisition  #% |- A] & UkBE I8~ 18 8 (4,500)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEYE - MEREE (10,146)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WEEM B ARl 2 &R F5a
a supsidiary 34 (5,103)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFTARSTH (18,310)
Financing activities RESER
Proceeds from issue of warrants BITRIRIEE FT1S5E 30 39,500
Proceeds from issue of bond BITESFSHIE 28 9,200
Proceeds from new bank borrowing FIBIRTTIE RPTS IR =
Repayments of bank borrowings EBRITRER (1,015)
Repayments of obligations under finance BEmERSAE

leases
d paid

EffAE

(2,738)

ash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

\

BEFBAS S (RRE

FH

\et increase in cash and casﬁ'ﬁ'
equivalents
ash and cash eunai,ents:a!,yl\ 5K
‘beginning of the year

ﬁl\%@%kiﬂﬁ’]?&%

—HRFEANA=TRLEE

2014
—mE
HK$'000
TAT

52
1,133

2,000
(722)

(4,970)
(2,000)

(6,692)

e




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on 31 May 2012, The registered office
of the Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business is located at 24/F., SUP Tower, 75-83 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong.

The Company had its primary listing on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 17 June 2013. The Company acts as an investment
holding company. Details of the principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 18. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong Dollars
(HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, all of the
following new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new and revised HKFRSs’) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on or
after 1 July 2014.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

Investment Entities

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefits Plans: Employee
Contributions

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures

for Non-Financial Assets

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HKAS 36 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

1.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BZ = — A& A=1TRHILEE

—R#E#H

ARRR—_E——FHRA=+—HEH
EHEEMALAERERERAA - &
A | B 5 1 9% =5 BE AL 7 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° 4N
NN EZLEEMBURNBBILARE
HB75-835R A AR A E241E o

ARBR-_ZB-=FATEBEERE
Bt XFTRIER ETH » RRAR]RIREER
NE HXTEMBRAREEXZKFEH
RHIEE18 - BRm A AN » NRB M
BRATET(TETIZ5

FERMAIREESTEEMERE
ER([FEMBERELEN])

RAFEE  REBERERT TNIIMRAE
HELGMAR([EESHEAE])
BN ELALEEBANRAEER —F
—OFELA - B2 RARNTREE
EREFTR] MARIERTER - BET K2 iE
(] R ERTRBMBHRELED D) -

BBUIEHMEED KETE
F105% - BBH
53R 2ERIZE12
SRR EBEHE
BI|SE275%
CHEN)
EBUEHEED BB BREER
(BETAR) —E—TFE—
T — — FIREA
FEE
BRI HELER BAEMEREED
CHEN) —F—FEZ
T — = FIREH
FEENE
g £ REBHGTE
F1GRUERTA) (REMHEK
EBEERE3 HESREEN
SRUBEIAN) SRAaE
EFEGHERFES6 FEREEMTFIUR
SR(ERTAN) B
BB SERIFE3 TAETAEFBERY
SRUERTAN) e EHARIEE
&5 (BT HRE B
2EBLZET®) B
20158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T AR R

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

ERAMITRESITEEMBERE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity and require a
reporting entity that meets the definition of an investment entity not to
consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss in its consolidated and separate financial
statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required to:

— obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with investment management services;

- commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its
investments on a fair value basis.

‘KOVHKFRS 12 and HKAS
S for investment entities.

EA([FRMBGREER ) ()

FEMEGHBEENE105%  F&M
BHEENS12RREFREERN
BT W EENETE

AEBERAFEERERT B BER
SEAFE0 - BAYBHREERF12
FRBEGA BRI RREERR 2
7l BRMBHEEF 10K ZETR
EREBERZER  UREFAKREE
BEELRESERTSHEMNB AR
BAR  RMBAREES KB TR
REBAFEFABGEENBRA -

RNBKRERRBZER  WEERA

- A ER2RZEREEHERHKREERE
RIEMAKREREES

-  REREEAG EEBRE M
BERERERNEE  RERAHH
%Z@iﬁjﬁﬂ%’éﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ 3
BAFEEEGFE RGBSR
DEREZRHE

S0 R BB R E
ABIARRE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first time in the current
year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the requirements relating
to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable
right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the Group has
assessed whether certain of its financial assets and financial liabilities
qualify for offset based on the criteria set out in the amendments and
concluded that the application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets for the first time in the
current year. The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement
to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (‘\CGU’")
to which goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
had been allocated when there has been no impairment or reversal
of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments
introduce additional disclosure requirements applicable to when the
recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is measured at fair value
less costs of disposal. These new disclosures include the fair value
hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques used which
are in line with the disclosure required by HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurements.

The application of these amendments has had no material impact on
the disclosures in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

2. ERAHMITRESITEEMGERE

#R([FRMBHRELER]) (&)

FHESHENEI2RIENSNEE
HEMARDEBITE

AEBERAFEEREATEGTE
AEREHEHEERERABZE
RN BAGRTERFIRMZIER]RB
ANERHEHEERSRBBECRT
BEEME - %FEE8 [REHEHEHE
ZABOEITHEN I R [RRERREHE

Z A

ZEEFTCERER -  AEBEDENZ
FERMEZ iR - HEEETEME
ENTHABEENAEKHEER &R
RERZEETHERAEBGA MK
BERERA LB BEATE -

FESHEREICRFEMEEZ
ATl Ol & SRR RO EET &

AEBEERAFEEREAETESTE
AIFESeHIFEMEEZ TRESBEE
ZIEFTAR - ZE G ERFEI65 ZEF]
EESERERHEMER T AERFH
BVEECRSEL BN ERBEIR
EROZERT  BURBEBERBRSE
ABN([REELEV])IKEEEL
FTE ° I RFERTSIABINEER
- ERERHSEABRUZANEE
B D ER O ERARER - 255
BEABRAFEER KAZIZRR
RAEERAM - BEBIMERELENE3
SN ERTEMRTE 2 WA o

ERZEFETHERAKRERA PR
RIFEHZWBABEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting for the first time
in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from
the requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a derivative
designated as a hedging instrument is novated under certain
circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any change to the fair
value of the derivative designated as a hedging instrument arising from
the novation should be included in the assessment and measurement
of hedge effectiveness.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the Group
does not have any derivatives that are subject to novation, the
application of these amendments has had no material impact on the
disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

- The Group has applied HK(FRIC) —
the current year. HK(FRIC) —
o recognise a liability to pay a levy |mposeo| by a government. The
Interpretation defines a Ievy, and spegfres that the obligating event that
gives rise to the liability is t th%— P k@ers the payment of the
levy, as |dent|ﬂed by Iegtgié&m gﬂon provides guidance
on how dn‘ferent levy aﬂ‘@% i ’be accounted for, in
pamcular it clanﬁes that né ‘

concem basis of ﬂnéﬁmal s;atem

Int 21 Levies for the first time in

Int 21 addresses the issue as to when

'c compulsmn nor the going
3& *parahon |mphes that an ermty

For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE =&

2.

—HRFEANA=TRLEE

ERAMITRESITEEMBERE
EA([FRMBGREER ) ()

FEEMEREIMITETAES
LI R $ e st TR A ST &

AEECRAFEERERETEGE
AIESRITE T AT B ARE RS
B ZBRI A - BEGHEREI9R
EETPIEA  EREREPTAZITAT
AEEETHEATEERR #E#HRR2E
SEIEEHEFHAZRTE  RFEFTT
BE  BERUAIAZMTETARE
BMEAZEMRFEZS - Re¥ER
TRV A B RN o

ZEEFCEPEM - ARAKEYL &
EAETEBRZOIATA  BEAZSE
BRTHERAERBGAMBRRIELZ
BEXER L RS BEEATE -

FE(ERMERERERAT) -
EE21 eumg

AEBEERAEEAREARE (BRY

 BREREZRBE®) -RBF21 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
consolidated financial statements:

For the year ended 30 June 2015 i E —ZE—AF/NA=1TRHILFE

2. ERAHMITRESITEEMGERE
EA([FRMBEREER ) ()

AEEY ERNZFFRAPHHRRTRER
F& RS T 51 2 AR08 1M R A RO F AT R 4
(BRI B BT F RS R -

HKFRSs (Amendment)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendment)

HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 28
(Amendment)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15
HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle!

Financial Instruments#

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture!

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception!

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations!

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers*

Disclosure initiative!

Clarification of Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants!

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'

BBV WEER BAMBHREZER
(BETA) —T——FF
—E—UFHEH
B E A
ERY SRS LR ST A
Eelel
ERYIERELER] HEEFEEHER
FIOHERESD AEELEY
GETERIFE2SE HNEEHSK
({BFTA) EA
ERYIEREER] KHEERE : ER
F1058 - BB A6HIsN
BEZERIZE 12
TRREREETE
Bl 252858
({BFTA)
BB ISR AR WEEN KR E
FIRUEEIAR) HERZEtRE
Vabrd
BB wEER RERLERE?
F145%
ERYIERELER] BEA O
F155%
ERGRTERIE 15 HETE
(BFTA)
ERGRTERIFE16 BB E R#HE
RERBBEIE  ARIEE
Bl 253858
CHEN),
EEestERE16 B¥  AEMEY
TRREREETE
BIZEA415%
(BRI A)
BB G ERFE2T BYMBEHERTHN
SRUEETA) PERAT

1 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier
application permitted

2 effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted
3 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier

application permitted

4 effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier
application permitted

1 KRB RFE— A HRZRRABRNEED
AR - AR e

2 HRoE—RF-A-BHZERRBNENOF
EEBUEREENMBRRER - RS
&R

g KRBt F— A HRZREBRNEED
AR - AR ER

4 REZB-NF—A—BRZERIGNFEH
AR - IR IER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version
of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI") measurement
category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,

and that have contractUaI ca§h flows that are solely payments
pr{f‘Lo|paI outstandmg are

of principal and mt:ge?t\ n the

For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE =&
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ZEBIMEHRELERFN S — AR EN
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koo ENETEREEN ZARERT
RETHEBBTASIA RAFERA
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ﬁ%@&%f;ﬁ@ NZPIBEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁ%ﬁi Bﬁ% For the year ended 30 June 2016 BE —ZE—AENA=THILFE

2. ERAHMITRESITEEMGERE
HEA([FEMB|EEDN ) ()

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

o The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principle of an “economic relationship”.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no
longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS
9 in the future may have a material impact on amounts reported
in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts, describes regulatory deferral
account balances as amounts of expense or income that would
not be recognised as assets or liabilities in accordance with other
standards, but that qualify to be deferred in accordance with HKFRS
14 because the amount is included, or is expected to be included, by
the rate regulator in establishing the price(s) that an entity can charge
o customers for rate regulated goods or services.

The amendments to HKFRS 14 apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of these amendments to HKFRS
14 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when
it becomes effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how to account
for the acquisition of a joint operation that constitutes a business
as defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations. Specifically, the
amendments state that the relevant principles on accounting for
business combinations in HKFRS 3 and other standards (e.g. HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets regarding impairment testing of a CGU to
which goodwill on acquisition of a joint operation has been allocated)
should be applied. The same requirements should be applied to
the formation of a joint operation if and only if an existing business is
contributed to the joint operation by one of the parties that participate
in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant information
required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for business combinations.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of these amendments to HKFRS
11 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

2. ERAHMITRESITEEMGERE

#R([FRMBHRELER]) (&)

FRMEBEEANEISRERSN
Wi (#8)

BEEBVEREENE 1SS - BEER
SEAK B X9 E (E R (Skptitt ) Rz + BT
REERAETHEBAE MRS [
BIBREP 2K - BEVBREERSE
155 E MR B R Z IR T A A E
T2 185] o thoh - BB IBMEERE
155 ZRVEH B RF R < R o

ARBEEEY - BRERTEVHR
HFERNF 1R AIGEH DR AEELER S B
BRERBELEBEREH 2 REBRE
FE R RAKBETHFAEHN
AR E A BRE LN F 1R 2T E
ZABEFTIE AT o

FREMEBEEANE11RERBSE
Kot EENETE

BEMBHRELEANE 1R EFT KB
BEXG(EBK - AXHK(EERAE
MR EEREIREBEH)) AR
AR HIES - AR-ME - ZFERIINA
BBV HREERIEI5 R MR B
XAtz B RAETARR -
PlanE R G ERIFECREEME - A
ARNKBAEEBRESERECRS
EEEMARENR - HEIABRZHE
BEXBCEFP TR EXEHEIAR
BEBE - ARG ZE XK ITARBNA
RIARE °

BEXRBREENAREGEHBES
B EERNFEIW R EMERRE 2
HHRAE R

BB BRELERNFE R BTN
E-—RF-A—BHZERIEZFEH
BIRARFEREER - KRB EFEEY
EREEM B REERNE1FZERTH
AEBZHEEMBHRRIUBEATE

WEERERAT £®H2015 69



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

ERAMITRESITEEMBERE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a revenue-
based depreciation method for items of property, plant and equipment.
The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
revenue is not an appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible
asset. This presumption can only be rebutted in the following two
limited circumstances:

a)  when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue;
or

b)  when it can be demonstrated that revenue and consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the Group uses the straight-
line method for depreciation for its property, plant and equipment.
The directors of the Company believe that the straight-line method is
the most appropriate method to reflect the consumption of economic
benefits inherent in the respective assets and accordingly, the

directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 16 ggd H ‘3;3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate financial

statements:
° At cost,
° In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (or HKAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for entities
that have not yet adopted HKFRS 9), or

° Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28 Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to be an
investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it shall account for
the change from the date when the change in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are consequential
amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential conflict with HKFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements and to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 27 will have a material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. ERAHITREEISEMERS

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS #B([HFEMERELERD ) ()
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

transactions between an entity and its associate or joint venture
have been amended to relate only to assets that do not
constitute a business.

A new requirement has been introduced that gains or losses
from downstream transactions involving assets that constitute
a business between an entity and its associate or joint venture
must be recognised in full in the investor's financial statements.

A requirement has been added that an entity needs to consider
whether assets that are sold or contributed in separate
transactions constitute a business and should be accounted for
as a single transaction.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or FERAUMEREEANE10REFETY

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its FTERE 8T HEHERENT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in HKFRS
5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal group) from held
for sale to held for distribution to owners (or vice versa), or when held-
for-distribution accounting is discontinued. The amendments apply
prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to clarify
whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in a transferred
asset for the purpose of the disclosures required in relation to
transferred assets and clarify that the offsetting disclosures (introduced
in the amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011 and effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not explicitly
required for all interim periods. However, the disclosures may need to
be included in condensed interim financial statements to comply with
HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality corporate
bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-employment
benefits should be issued in the same currency as the benefits to be
paid. These amendments would result in the depth of the market for
high quality corporate bonds being assessed at currency level. The
amendments apply from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented in the financial statements in which the amendments
are first applied. Any initial adjustment arising should be recognised in
retained eamings at the beginning of that period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements relating to
information required by HKAS 34 that is presented elsewhere within
the interim financial report but outside the interim financial statements.
The amendments require that such information be incorporated by way
of a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the other
part of the interim financial report that is available to users on the same
terms and at the same time as the interim financial statements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj%ﬁ% M:.I-H For the year ended 30 June 2015 BiE=—ZE—RESA=1RHILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEBE
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in ZERAYEREREBIBEDR BT ERE
accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term that includes AR (It TP A A R BB I 15 S &
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards B - e ER([FEe2ER]]) LA
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, and accounting REBSTMASEMNREARES
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the PREFTRENZFH)RE - 1od - 4R
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures B BREREOEESEHAESIMEEREA
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth FEIERES FhRB (AR EHiR
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the B D) EEBATHEOIFT R EREE WE -

‘GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity RIEBR BV RS ELRRLA S PR
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates REEEEEELHE - Gt RE%
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported WM EeTREZIER  UEREHRZ
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates BENBE WARZTHZEH - 25
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience st R A AEE IR ERELER &I
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under BHEENZEBLATNNIBEECSEH
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making MmREAZAEEEMEL @ TE&REKTE
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not BRIARGEKREMKEMSEZEERE
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from BEZERMEEFTIEL H 6 2 B o ek
these estimates. FHEERIRETEF

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. R EEER T EA st KRB RIELD

evisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in BE - e G EEs Ry E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®HEE(HE)

(CONTINUED)
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consolidation
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principle accounting polices are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj%ﬁ% M:.I-H For the year ended 30 June 2015 BiE=—ZE—RESA=1RHILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an

ostee, it has povver over the investee when the voting rlghts are

circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to gi\/e it pgwé{, including:

of tHe investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and ‘
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®HEE(HE)

(CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group cease to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

\Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj%ﬁ% M:.I--EI For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE—ZE—RESA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®HEE(HE)

(CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued) FelEEESE(E)
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing REFBRBEEMB LTI EREEZER
subsidiaries =E
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that MAEBRH B AR EEREE
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are WEBHRAREBKEZHEBHE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

3.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®HEE(HE)

(CONTINUED)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
transactions of the acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree’s
share-based payment transactions with share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or another measurement basis required by another HKFRS.

When the consideration the Group transfers in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and considered as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the “measurement period”

which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date. W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)
Business combinations (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the
end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting
is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Merger accounting for common control combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statement items of the combining entities or business in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or business are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling party's perspective.
No amount is recognised with respect to goodwill or any excess of
acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over its cost at the time of
common control combination, to the extent of the contribution of the
controlling party’s interest.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

(CONTINUED)

Merger accounting for common control combination
(continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income include the results of each of the combining entities or
business from the earliest date presented or since the date when
combining entities or business first came under common control,
where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of common
control combination.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the combining entities or business are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated but considered as an
impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
combining entities or business have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration, cost of
furnishing information to shareholders, costs or losses incurred in
combining operations of the previously separate businesses, etc.,
incurred in relation to the common control combination that is to be
accounted for by using merger accounting are recognised as an
‘ehse in the period in which they are incurred.

Certain comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements
are presented as if the entities or bg@iﬁésses had been combined at
us ting | Qg.or when they first came
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

(CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as
an additional cost of that property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives for the years ended
30 June 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 210 7 years
Equipment and machinery 210 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

Computer equipment 2 10 4 years

LLeasehold improvement Over the leased term

\Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash

‘ flows are discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount
' rate that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money

and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjuste_d‘.l :

is reduced to its reooverab
immediately in profrt_Qr |OSS
svalued amount, in WQ%'!*
oY

revaluation decrease
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s CGUs (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
pasis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less any subseqguent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair values
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

3.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE =&

—HRFEANA=TRLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®HEE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. Cost is assigned
to individual items on the weight-average basis. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expense.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call
with banks, cash investments with a maturity of three months or less
from date of investment and bank overdrafts.

Provisions and contmgent Ilabllltles

Provisions are recogmsedﬁ‘b
(legal or constructive) as a‘w+ S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)
Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable
is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

When the cost of cleaning services to fulfill the obligation under the
contract exceeds the revenue, a provision for onerous contracts would
be made. In estimating the amount by which the cleaning cost are
expected to exceed the revenue, management takes into account the
cost of fulfiling the obligation under the contract and any compensation
or penalties arising from failure to fuffill it, which is the lower will be
recognised as the unavoidable costs.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligations cannot be
measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially
measured at fair value at the acquisition date. At the end of the
subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are measured
at the higher of the amount that would be recognized in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

3.

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®HEE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as obligations under finance leases.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligations so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

perating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pa’rte{n in which economic benefits

operating leases are recogr
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)
Leasing (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to
assets under construction for future productive use, which are
included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency
borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to
hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting policies
below); and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®HEE(HE)

(CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing control

over the subsidiary, the propdr’ﬂonatg share of accumulated exchange

interests and are not

\i"dispos'é[s (i.e. partial

disposals of associates: that do not result in the

Group losing si@%’ﬁ@amt ir 6 or cntrol) the proportionate
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

(CONTINUED)
Share option expenses

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose to
attract, retain and reward the eligible persons and to provide the eligible
persons an incentive or reward for their contribution to the Group.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit
or loss. When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to retained eamings.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabllites (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
which fall within the category of loan and receivables. The accounting
policies adopted are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of alloc&ﬁng interest income over the
relevant period. The effec;fye |Qt@!ss te.is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated fut %?&Mng all fees on points

of the effective interest
u NS @‘dlscounts) through the
rglvhere approprlate a shorter

paid or recelved that
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Loan and receivables

Loan and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loan and receivables (including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment,

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

The objective evidence of impairment could include:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

(o)  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in adaition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subseqguent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the

- allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment IOSS\decreases and the decrease
can be related obj chver t{;,an em,o Currmg after the impairment
! ‘Sed impairment loss is

he carrying amount of
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other than
those financial liabilites designated as at financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, accruals, deposits
received and other payables, obligations under finance leases, bank
borrowing and bond) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Retirement benefits costs

The Group's contribution to the defirje%{jontribution retirement benefit
plans are charged to co 0 st
other comprehensive ince
contributions forﬁeited by

tatement of profit or loss and
Irred and are reduced by
B leave the scheme prior
‘ ;ngzhas no further payment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

(CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (continued)

For the environmental cleaning service contract or car beauty
package relates to routine environmental and cleaning services (the
“Environment and Cleaning”) and auto beauty services (the "AUTO"),
the service income will be recognised on a straight-line basis over the
contract terms as the work is performed.

For services that are provided on ad-hoc basis, service income is
recognised upon completion of the provision of such ad-hoc services.

Revenue from the provision of AUTO are recognised when the services
have been rendered to clients. Receipts in respect of service packages
for which the relevant services have not been rendered are deferred
and recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax,

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxation profit differs from profit as reported in consolidated statements
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years, and it further excludes items that are never taxable and
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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3.

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®HEE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
assoclated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred

~ tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated

with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there vv||| be sufﬁment taxable profits against
which to utiize the benefits. of the tem_porary ohfferences and they are
expected to reverse in the e ;

each reporting perrod ancie’rqm‘
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)
Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Dividends

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the directors of the Group.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by other than a
fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’'s own equity
instruments are derivative financial instruments. Warrants classified
as derivative financial instruments are recognised at their fair values at
the date of issue. Changes in fair values in subsequent periods are
recognised through profit or loss.

For the year ended 30 June 2016 i ZE—F—AF A=+ HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

3.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE =&

—HRFEANA=TRLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®HEE(E)
(CONTINUED)

Warrants (continued)

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by a fixed amount

of cash for a fixed number of the Company’'s own equity instruments

are equity instruments. The net proceeds received from the issue of

warrants is recognised in equity (warrant reserve). The warrant reserve

will be transferred to share capital and share premium accounts upon

the exercise of the warrants. When the warrants are still not exercised

at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the warrant

reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group ff;

A person, or close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2 has significant influence over the Group; or

(38) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or the Grogp’s parer&{;‘ E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

3.

For the year ended 30 June 2016 i ZE—F—AF A=+ HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®HEE(HE)

(CONTINUED)
Related parties (continued)

(ii) (continued)
(4)  one entity is a joint venture of a third party and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (j).

(7)  aperson identified in ()(1) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when there
is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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4.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE =&

—HRFEANA=TRLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BXA®iH&sRAIET(HE)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Management of the Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges and amortisation for the Group'’s plant
and equipment and intangible assets. Management of the Group will
revise the depreciation charges and amortisation where useful lives
are different to previously estimated, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold.

Impairment loss in respect of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment loss on trade and other receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of accounts and on management’'s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to detem(ate resulting in an impairment

of their ability to make payr:f;ents, aekeu na Jmpanrment loss may be
required. g \‘.\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.

4.

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation for requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable post-tax discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 30 June 2015 was HK$629,000
(2014 HK$NIl). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in Note 16.

Provision

When there is a probability that an outflow of economic benefits will
occur due to a present obligation resulting from a past event, and
such amount can be reasonably estimated, a corresponding amount
of provision is recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
However, no provision is recognised for costs that need to be incurred
to operate in the future.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong. Significant
judgement is required in determining provision for taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE
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5.

- Revenue, vvhlch |S~@ISO the

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of services provided.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are
as follows:

Environmental and Cleaning  Provision of environmental and cleaning
services in Hong Kong and Macau

AUTO Provision of auto beauty services in

Hong Kong

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments is presented
below:

Revenue

Turnover represents the aggregate of service income from
Environmental and Cleaning and AUTO.

An analysis of the Group's turnover is as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE =&

—HRFEANA=TRLEE

5. 9EBEH

RAMERRTES BEAMAEER
BREE 2 W2 AN EDEFRERG
AR -

AEBEREBERBVHRELAES
MR E R 2HD BT

SR8

BREREEZ RESRRPRERE
NoE 2 RS
AUTO REBRM
REBEER RS
BRAAEBR 2®RD BOEREHT ¢
1) &=
LA AIRIE KOE 2 A RAUTOR AR 1% Uk
ALEF o
AEEEXEESNAT ¢
2015 2014
g T —T—mF
$°000 HK$'000
FET FiBT

Serwoe income from Enwronm@ntal and@leamng i—i,%&,ﬁ,j%}%&i%l&)\ -
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1,588
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 i E —ZE—AF/NA=1TRHILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DIWEE(E)
Segment revenues and results DU E R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by AREBIZA 2RO IE DA M ELE
reportable segments: SR -
2015 —E-IF

Environmental

Revenue Wz

Revenue from external customers REINBRFH R
Result e

Segment profit/(loss) DEEF(E5E)

Other incomes, other gains and losses

B - At lias B

200,604 1,588

3,781 (9,828)

and Cleaning AUTO Consolidated
BREREZ AUTO SE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHR FHR FHR

202,192

(6,047)

and impaiments A NRE (5,677)
Central administrative costs R RATER AR AR (13,681)
Finance costs AR A (458)
Loss before taxation BR7 A ES1E (25,863)

Environmental
and Cleaning AUTO Consolidated
RERBR AUTO FERe)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHIT FHET
Revenue Wz
Revenue from external customers REINER P E R 193,098 - 193,098
Result #i5
Segment profit pak=yagil 17,160 - 17,160
Other incomes and gains EH AU A R Uas 570
Central administrative costs R ATERA AR (1,296)
Profit before taxation ML EIR A 16,135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results (continued)

Turnover reported above represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the year (2014
HK$SNI).

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment results represent the
results from each segment without allocation of central administrative
and other costs including directors emoluments, impairment losses
on deposits and other receivables, loss from termination of possible
acquisition, finance costs and other operating expenses. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

Segment assets and liabilities

2015

Assets BE
Segment assets - ABEE
- ROBAREE

Unallocated corporate assets
Q

5.

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

SEREHE(#])
o BBl & e AR ()

PRERERENENRESEE Y
25 - 4 PO A S B P BBRI S EE (= 2
—E : T -

AEHN BB BRREARE ST
KRR - DEEEENLED AR RTT
BEEMKRA(BRESHH - REME
b EUGRIERERE - RIEABERE S
HZER  BERAREMEER)E
MTBEDRZEME - W RRERLER
REREABFEDBEEREFE D BR
B2hA -

SHRERAR
—E-5F

Environmental
and Cleaning
BREREZR

AUTO
AUTO
HK$°000
TR

Consolidated
)
HK$°000
THET

HK$°000
TR

99,189 5,112 104,301

23,105

127,406

nsolidated
£y
OU

19,639
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. SWBEHE(HA)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) SMBERARE(E)
2014 —E—OF
Environmental
and Cleaning AUTO Consolidated
RERBR AUTO e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TR

Assets BE

Segment assets DEEE 92,714 - 92,714

Unallocated corporate assets AOBARIEE 1,173

93,887

Environmental
and Cleaning AUTO Consolidated
RERAR AUTO e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TR

Liabilities RiE

Segment liabilities SEaE 29,420 = 29,420

Unallocated corporate liabilities ANERRIAE -

29,420

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating BERSHLRI[ERZDIPEORLERE :

resources between segments:

U all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than e MAEBECLSEZEIZ®RHOIF(A
corporate assets, property, plant and equipment and cash and AIBE - V¥ MENZEURE
cash equivalents. Goodwill and intangible assets are allocated to ERIBEEEBYRIN) - BELE
reportable segments; and FEESREA 2R/ &

U all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than e MFMEABRBESEZEIZ®RHIF(A

corporate liabilites and bond.

AR EREFRIN)

wEERERAE £®2015 107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj%ﬁ% M:.I-H For the year ended 30 June 2015 BiE=—ZE—RESA=1RHILEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. SEEE(IE)
Other segment information Htt S BEHE
Environmental
and Cleaning
BIER AUTO Unallocated Total
B AUTO AOE “@st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TRRT THERT TR THET
2015 “E-0F
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRERE
equipment
Amortisation on the intangible asset B EEEH
Impaiment loss an goodwill (Note 16) mERESE(HE6)
Impaiment losses on deposits and Be R EMERGUERESSE
other receivables (Note 21) (FzE21)
Loss from termination of possible acquisition 4% |- AT EUEE I8 7 E518
(Note 8) (KizE8)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE KR
and equipment, net RN
Additions to non-current assets* FRBBERE

Environmental

and Cleaning L
RER AUTO Unallocated Total

) ~AJTO AR st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR

2014 :
Depreciation of property, plant an
equpment

-

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment ..
dditions to non-current asse

Additions to non—ot?rrent,‘ S
sset and restricted bank dep

S
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e M RAR MR

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5.
Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, is set out below:

SEEHE ()
FEEFRRH

For the year ended 30 June 2016 HE —ZT—RAFNA=THILFE

KEEZEFFH e (BEASE WS

10%A_E)EFIZAT

2015
—E—RHEF
HK$°000
FET

Customer A ZEA
Customer B ZFEB
Customer C BFC

Geographical information

No geographical information is provided as most of the Group’s
revenue arises from Hong Kong and the Group’s identifiable assets
and liabilities are mainly located in Hong Kong.

1th 35 3%

2014

—EF—UF

HK$'000
TAT

42,001
27,822
25,399

HRASEAR D WEIRE EERAE
B RN EERBBEEEUNES

O BRI EHY -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &£MTH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EMIARE
The Group rEH
2015
—E—HEF
HK$’000
FET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B EWGRIE
— Trade receivables — & S ERFIR
— Deposits and other receivables — e R H M EREIE

— Restricted bank deposits —ZBRHIERITER

— Cash and cash equivalents —RBEe RIRSFEY
2015
—E—HEF
HK$’000
FET
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortised cost BESHRL AR
— Trade payables — B S ENFKIE

— Accruals, deposits received and

other payables R E A T FRIR
— Bank borrowing —SRITIE K
— Obligations under finance leases — RO E M EARIE
- Bond — &%

—EETER - 2iiRE

2014
—EF-UF
HK$'000
FAET

33,470
2,565
8,905

37,382

2014
—EF-UF
HK$'000
FAT

4,289

17,085
1,278
3,563
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%éﬁj%ﬁ% M:.I-H For the year ended 30 June 2015 BiE=—ZE—RESA=1RHILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. &MTH(HE)
(a) Categories of financial instruments (continued) (a) &MIAPEGE)
The Company AT
2015 2014
—E-HF —Z—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FBT
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables B EMWGRIE
— Deposits —&& -
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — FEURBT B A BB 20
— Cash and cash equivalents —BeRIREFEY 12,178
2015 2014
—E-RF —Z—JOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiBT
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortised cost B HRAN
— Accruals —EETER 79
— Amounts due to subsidiaries —F&EHWE’D\E%’UE 93




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁ%ﬁi Bﬁ% For the year ended 30 June 2016 BE —ZE—AENA=THILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group and the Company mainly operate in Hong
Kong and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
Renminbi (‘RMB”) as certain bank balance of the Group
is denominated in RMB. The Group's and the Company's
management do not expect the net foreign currency risk
from these activities to be significant and hence, the Group
and the Company do not presently hedge the foreign
exchange risks. The Group and the Company periodically
review liquid assets and liabilities held in currencies other
than HK$ to evaluate its foreign exchange risk exposure.

There is no sensitivity analysis as the risk is insignificant.

6. &FMTHR(HE)
(b) MEREREEEERBE
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BRR - mi5ER(2ENEE R
EMERR) FERR LR E
TR - AEENRERREEN
RPN TR TSN A AN -
SHEMUAEEMHERANEBLED

NP EREHK -

mEEE
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REBRARBAEIBZEERE
REXR - BRAKEET
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
o variable-rate bank borrowings. It is the Group’s policy
1o keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

As at 30 June 2015 and 2014, the Group'’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of Hong Kong Dollar Prime Lending Rate/Best Lending
Rate arising from the Group’'s Hong Kong Dollar
denominated bank borrowing. As at 30 June 2015, the
bond also bears a fixed interest rate. Since the Group
does not expect any significant movement in these interest
rates, the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is minimal.
The exposures to the interest rate risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit r|sk which will cause a financial loss to

the Group due to fauure tods%harge an obligation by the
counterparties IS_,, [
respective reco

[ arrymg amount of the
béefs as stated in the

consolidated stat
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

6.

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group had certain concentration of credit risk as 42.1%
and 71.3% of the total trade receivables of the Group were due
from 5 customers as at 30 June 2015 and 2014 respectively.
Management considered the credit risk is limited since the
Group trades only with customers with an appropriate credit
history and good reputation. The management monitored the
financial background and creditability of those debtors on an
ongoing basis. In addition, the credit risk on liquid funds including
pank deposits and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

The Group has to maintain a suitable level of liquidity to finance
the daily operation, capital expenditure and repayment of
borrowings. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

Specifically, for secured term loans which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be required to pay, that is
if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other bank
borrowings is prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

6. &FMTHR(HE)

(b)

M EE B R BR (1)

=B/ (&)

RZE—RER-_ZE—MNENA
=1+H ARAEERKARRF
MRBEDBILRE SR KIER
421% K 71.3% » MRS B E
BELNEREERR - BRASE
EEZEBEREEELERRIT(E
BNEFERG  MEEEREREE
ERBR - ERERFEEEZEE
HBAR TS S R OIS o tob
BOERRRITEHRERBDESH
FEERBRER  BEEFHAESE
REFHYERTT o

REELEE

AEBBERBEERKFNRBE
& BN AEEBEE - EAH
XREREFAREER - ARER
BRSEREZANANFEHRBE
TR ERE BB THERIE - BR
HeRmamBA e NEMNES
EBEHNRSHESHE

HRgME AR AREREER

il
(HIRITR2EBIBITE) A EA

#
ERERME - SIBREREH
MEREREORLEL - MENR

ATTEE B (R AU B & SR R I
BB A2y - ELADIRTT(E KA B HA
BT IRRBEE & K A B -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. ST R(HE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERBEEABERBEER(E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEELEE(E)
The remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date of the RS HEAREEETESRARE
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities are as follows: MR TELEEBEFT -
The Group N EH
Weighted Morethan ~ More than
average Within 1yearbut  2years but Total
effective 1 year or less than less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  ondemand 2years 5years 5years  cashflows amount
mEFH —ER BR-F BEWE AR

RENE FEEX  EIRME  EOREF RENE  RERBLE Rl
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEn TEn T TEn TEn TEn

As at 30 June 2015 RoE-RERA=1H

Trade payables B a7 7,848 7,848 1848
Accrudls, deposiisrecelved  JESTER - BUES

and ofher payables REMENTUE 20,495 ! 22,495

Bank borrowing R ! %6 <

Bond % ! 700 ) ! ! 9,250

~ Obligations under finance AEREAE
= leases ! 789 50 825

750

_ More the
average Within 1 year DUt

Néj’. effective Tyearor less than

.

interestrate ~ on demand 2yeals
WP -fh A

BEiE  ImE B
% HOm AN
) 7
\‘

A
v
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2016 HE —ZT—RAFNA=THILFE

6.

&MTR(HE)

(b) MERRERBEREEE)

Liquidity risk (continued) TEBEL R (E)
The Company /N |
Weighted More than More than
average Within 1yearbut  2years but Total
effective 1 year or less than less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  ondemand 2years 5years 5years  cashflows amount
EFH —ER BB BEWF AR
- YES IEER  BORWE  BOREE RENE E4nBEE EE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR Tén Tén Tén Tén T
As at 30 June 2015 R=Z-REAR=1H
Accruals and offer payables  FEsTER R M3
Amount due fo subsidieres  FERFBARIZE
Financial quarantee contract BT ERAH

Weighted More than More than
average Within 1 year but 2 years but Total
effective 1 year or less than less than Over  undiscounted Caming
interest rate on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
T —5R A EBmE AR
ik JEER  EIREE  EIRDF TENE Bensss R
% HK8000 HKB000 HKB000 HKB000 HKB000 HK$000
Thr Thr Thr THL THL THL
As at 30 June 2014 RZZ-MERA=1H
Acoruals EBE - 79 - - - 7 79
Amount due to a subsiciary — [ERHBARIZIE = %3 = = = 3 3
Financial quarantee conract. ~ BHEERAN - 1,330 - - - 1330 =
1,602 = = = 1,602 172

ERMBERENES 2SR
BFARBEERRE (HEE25) B A
RAMRBE R 2 B R SRR T BE
ARblENZEREHE - RIERS
HIRZBR > ARRRBBERR
BRBHENERIBIR - AT - b
AHRFHFORBERRE AL
HEMmES - Mazrl BB F 5P
REBERZEBEMBERARZEE
BRI REIEAERT

The amount included above for financial guarantee contract is
the maximum amount the Company could be forced to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee (Note
25). Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the Company considers that it is more likely than not that such
an amount will not be payable under the arrangement. However,
this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. &MTA(HE)
(c) &MIRMATFE

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and trade in active markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid and ask prices
respectively.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair value.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

W
er than quoted prices
bservable for the asset or

.

LE,?
"i'nc%"'he Group has no fi

N

SHEERSBABNATEER
T

BEBREGRRRGHLNERT S
EENEREEREREBNAT
BDR2ERBEMEEABRE

HivemEEREBBENATE
DERMBRBESRENTIRARE
EBRAEE -

ARRIEZRB/NGE M BRI
THEREEREBAEREER
HAFERE -

AEBRBEAFEFENGABE
ABREERAFEFENBAR
BHHEEBNERMEERATER
BELRBEESBTANTE #F15
e

. E-REABBEEEA
EEHMATUREHIEREE
HAFNERTHZBR( K
W) ;
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7.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group'’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concem, so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of the Group and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maximise the retums to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of debts, which
include borrowings from banks, obligations under finance leases
and bond and equity attributable to owners of the Group, comprising
issued share capital, share premium, other reserve, contribution
surplus, foreign currency translation reserve, warrant reserve and
retained earnings. The Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital to monitor its capital
structure on the basis of a gearing ratio. This ratio is expressed by as
a percentage of total borrowings over the total equity. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged during the years ended 30 June
20156 and 2014.

7.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

BEERER

AEBETEAEENTIEZARARE
AEBEBRHELENRES  BBEKR
RBRAKF BERRREEBARASE
RARGRE  BERARBERRTX
(O] % N2 A B A AR B A SR &R o

AR B TR S R B R A A A
BRI - 4E BRI 3R (T L LB
B KT ) BB AR 5 SR
BRERMESHTE - LRIFOEBR
BRI -

AR B SE AT B & B X MR
INEYE AR TE FRARAR

AEBENEREBTIZHEBKEAK - 2
EIRTTER - REBREAERES - K
RASEHEE NEE#ED  EHBED
BTN - s @ - HfREE - B
B INERE - RBEERERRE
BN AEBEEBEARANESEE
AEENEBRIAZEEAGBL RELER
RHEBARER o %R IAERARTRR A
Ba@Bnaskst® REazE_%
—hFERZZE-NFERA=THILF
B AEENERRBEFIE -
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7. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

7.

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

BEEEEEGR)

R=F-AFR-B-MFAA=TH
MAERELEMT

2015 2014

—E-AfF —EFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THT

Total borrowings (Note (i) ek REA(FIE() 4,841

Total equity (Note (i) T2 428 (P E() 64,467

Gearing ratio BEBMGBLLE 7.5%
Notes: B5E

i

(i)

Total borrowings include bank borrowing, obligations under finance leases and
bond are detailed in Notes 25, 26 and 29 respectively.

Total equity includes all share capital and reserves at the end of the reporting
period.

0 ERAAEEERTEN  RERERERE
%« FH1ED BIEAHIEE25 « 26%29 ©

(i) BREEBENREMREE BNMAERAE
R fkfE o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

8.

For the year ended 30 June 2016 HE —ZT—RAFNA=THILFE

OTHER INCOMES, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hffilk A * K8 - BIERRE

AND IMPAIRMENTS

2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Other incomes: Hapg A :
Interest income FLEWA 78
Sundry income FEIEWA 675
Reversal of provision for long service payment 1 [El & EAARTS & 45 1,020
Reversal of provision for severance payment B OB 595
Reversal of provision for untaken paid leave Bl R I F R Ep R 591
Reversal of provision for staff allowances and #4 [0 B TrB) RAICAL B
bonus 2,045
Reversal of provision for claims B LI RERE 359
5,363
Other gains: Hithlzs :
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE - BE
plant and equipment, net R BRI F 58 211
211
Other losses and impairments: HibgEsiE R REE :
Loss from termination of possible EIE AT RIS IR A IR
acquisition (Note) (Fff3E) (4,500) -
Impairment losses on deposits and other e kA v RIS RERE
receivables (Note 21) (FfFzE21) (5,660) -
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 16) EERERE (M E16) (8,530) -
(18,690) =
(17,532) 5,574

Note:

On 20 October 2014, Go Million Limited (“Go Million”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding (the
“MOU") with Lofty East Limited (the “First Vendor”) and Creation Era Limited (the “Second
Vendor”) (collectively referred to as the “Vendors”) for the possible acquisition (the
“Possible Acquisition”) of not less than 51% of the issued share capital of Hong Kong
Automobile Restoration Group Limited (the “Target Company”), under which a deposit
of HK$4,500,000 was paid by Go Milion to the Vendors. The Target Company, through
its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in motor vehicles beauty services including cars
detailing, repairing and maintenance services in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

This deposit is unsecured, interest free and refundable in the event that no formal sale and
purchase agreement is entered into between Go Million and the Vendors solely due to the
fault of the Vendors.

On 9 January 2015, Go Million decided to terminate the MOU with effect from 9 January
2015, and as a result, the deposit of HK$4,500,000 shall not be refunded to Go Million
from the Vendors.

The deposit of HK$4,500,000 was charged to the profit or loss during the year ended 30
June 2015.

BiRE -

R=ZZT—NF+A=1AH  ARE2ENBARESE
BRAT([=E ])ELofty Fast Limited (B & E 5 ])
K Creation Era Limited([ 8= &5 1) (5B A [%%F
B DI — BN R ERLOR DR E =k ([FRAR
ERER]) - AA A AR sEdiEHong Kong Automobile
Restoration Group Limited([ B 22 /] 1) T #51%H)
BRTRA((FIElEEE]) - it - e8RZSE
73 X 15/4,500,0008 Tk ® - BRERAREBEMBEAR
AIFERFAEXDTRY - BEEES  RFARAE
HREER - BIERIRERE

RERBER REREERZEE S RRMEHS
BHEZEBETARERILIEXBE HARBRLT T AR
—E-RF AR SERELILRFEETE
—E-RF-ANRREY  ZEFESTEARE

£ $£4,500,0008 TERBE-T—RAFA=1H
IEFERBER IR -
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%éﬁj%ﬁ% M{I-H For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MERF
2015 2014
—B-HF —T-m&F
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FBT
Interests on: DREIENRE :
Bank borrowings wholly repayable ARAFRBEEER
within five years RITHEK 76
Finance lease charges REREER 280
Effective interest on bond (Note 29) EHE 2 BEME (MfzE29) -
356
10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. RBRIRAI(E5H8) 27
(Loss)/profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging: BERI(EE), R FE MR TYEE
2015 2014
—E-AfF —Z—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN & 500 400
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - MEARETES
‘Owned by the Group REBE TS 5,319 1,862
‘Held under finance lease obligations CRBEEETETAEE 829 3,300
Loss on written off of property, ! WEEME - ME MR EE
plant and equipment ' - 243 =
Amortisation of intangiole assets ~ « BB EH - : 56 -
Cost of consumable goods o HREmAR ‘ 2,827 2,652

N KRR R a2 | )

Provision for untaken paid-le

]

Staff costs including dire BIAN(BIEESHM
Salaries and wag;éJs  HeRkTH F 116,160
Long senvice pay@p-t REIRG S 53
Allowances and other: AR REAM 1,426

.~ Contributions to defined cont n L EBEEZURMAGTE

frement plans N P 4,474
e 3 AN

“

=
A

122,113

3,099



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁjﬁ*ﬁ% M:.I--ELI For the year ended 30 June 2015 B E —E—RENA=1THILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 11. FRrfSIREAX
The income tax expenses for the years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014 BE_Z—RAFK-_FT—NFE~A=1+
represent Hong Kong Profits Tax which is calculated at 16.5% on the HIEFERNMEHRAZEEBFES - &
estimated assessable profit of the Group. BARE B HET R RA16.5% 5TH& °
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBTT
Current tax: BPEAFRIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBEREH
— Current year provision —ARFE R 2,980
— Over provision in prior years —BEFE B =
2,950
Deferred tax (Note 28) IR A (M17E28) 91
Income tax expenses S 3,041
The income tax expenses for the years ended 30 June 2015 and HE_T—RFR-_Z—WNFA="
2014 can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit before taxation per the HIEFERMMSHALEGRGERRE
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 2SRRGB E A (EE), 55
income as follows: RO BRLAAT ¢
2015 2014
—E-FF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT Fi&T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREEAT(EHE), SR F (25,863) 16,135
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of RE RS H%E16.5%
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—PU4F : 16.5%)
FTE WA (4,267) 2,662
Tax effect of; AT HEAREE
Income not taxable for tax purpose BB AT (159) (162)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose DRI 2,149 450
Recognised temporary differences R YR =5 128 91
Over provision in prior year BT S RRE RS (47) =
Tax loss not recognised RIERT IS E 18 3,582 =
Income tax expenses PS> 1,386 3,041

EnnRERAE FH2015 121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%éﬁj%ﬁ% M{I-H For the year ended 30 June 2016 B E—ZT—FHFENA=1THILFE
12. DIVIDENDS 12. IRR
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of ARAREETEEZNEEZE T —T1FR
any dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015 and 2014. A final —ZE—NEXNA=T B IEFEEIRMEM
dividend of HK 2 cents per share for the year ended 30 June 2013, RE - REBEE-_ZE—NFEA=FTHI:
amounted to HK$2,000,000, was declared by the Board and paid to FE G EEeERBEE_ZE— =8
the Company’s shareholders during the year ended 30 June 2014, =T HIEFENRAREFREBN - &
2,000,000 7T + WE RS F AR A [
% o
13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. SR (E5i8) &8
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/eamings per share STERRNREE AELTRER K EE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following (E18) /B FEs T LA T 5| 84 A =Lt
data:
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—UFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
(Loss)/eamings for the year attributable RNARIEBANELFE
to the owners of the Company (E518), /&7 13,094
2015 2014
—E—RHE —Z—F
} (restated)
(&%)
’000 ‘000

T

purpose of the basic e
per share (Note) s =2 i 10,000,000




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 30 June 2015 i E —ZE—AF/NA=1TRHILFE

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 13. SR (EE) BFI(E)

Note:

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/eamings per share for the years ended
30 June 2015 and 2014 is based on the weighted average number of approximately
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the years ended 30 June
2015 and 2014 respectively.

On 17 November 2014 and 23 December 2013, the Company conducted a 1-for-10
share subdivision. Each issued and unissued ordinary share of the Company of HK$0.001
and HK$0.01 each was subdivided into 10 ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 and HK$0.001
each respectively (Note 31). The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue used
in the basic and diluted eamings per share calculation during the year ended 30 June 2014
was adjusted retrospectively.

The outstanding warrants are not included in the calculation of the diluted loss per share as
they have anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2015.

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 30
June 2014 and therefore the diluted eamings per share amounts are the same as the basic
eamings per share for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Bt %

Rt

AERE—E-RER-T-NENAZTRHLEFEE
FREAREE(BE) BN DREEE-T—AF
EZZ—NERA=+THIEFEARFEEHTEBER
Hn#EF 359 284910,000,000,0008% 51 ©

R-ZE—MmFE+—A++tAR=-ZT—=%+=-A4
—+=A ' AARET IR TIITHE - ARREFR
E{E0.001 7% 7T & 0.01 BT H B 31T RARH IR L @R
2 B 48 A1 OR% B A% 1 5 0.0001 75 7T % 0.001 745 TTHY
LBAR (FIEST) - RETEBE=_T—NF A=+
HIFESREARRESRFNE BT L BRIMNETF
BB BPRE -

Rt E GRS R RN ARG AT ERREE - B
HHHE—T-AFA A=+ ALFESREANEE
BB REERE -

HE_Z-NEAA=THLFENERTEE LR

B Bt BEZE-MFEASA=THLEFESRE
SERMNEGRERRTER -
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%éﬁj%ﬁ% M:.I--EI For the year ended 30 June 2015 BiE=—ZE—RESA=1RHILEE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 14. EEMi¢RABESHFAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Directors’ emoluments EEMe
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven directors during REBEZZ—RAFR=ZZT—NF~A
the years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014 were as follows: Z+HLEFE BENKENERZREES
ARFBANT
Salaries and Contributions to
other emoluments retirement benefits
Director's fees and benefits Discretionary bonus scheme Total emoluments

FEl §4 - BfBEREMER RiEti L EFIRE e Hesa
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 215 2014 2015 2014
“2-1f -T-QmF -3 TP -%-BF -E-NF CE-Rf -F-MmE C§-1fF CEME
HK$000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKSO00  HK$'000  HKS000
Thn TEr  TEn  TAr THn  Thr  TEr  TEr  TEr TExn

Chairman and Executive Director IRRUTES

M. Chan Waiit (3 BEGEE [ :
Executive Directors 4Es

M. Fan Shek Cheong, Alen 1) ERELAD 1620
. WWong Yin Jun, Samue! (0 IBREC) o7
Ms. Hung St Hing, Lifan o) L) 568
M. Cao Zhiven (¢ 6 ) .
M Weng L f TN -
M. Znang Chengln (g FRITE -
Ms. Wong Chi Yan (1) ERERLN -

2,744

Non-executive Directors
M. Fen Sheung Ting, Mara )
Mr. Woo Yik Man (m)

L

Independent Non-execuive Directors

o King Man, Kenneth ()

agkin Ping, Patick
 Pein

P



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁ%iﬁ% M:J-H For the year ended 30 June 2015 B E —E—RENA=1THILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

a) Mr. Chan Wai Kit was appointed on 16 June 2015. Mr. Chan Wai Kit is also the
Managing Director of the Group. The function of the Managing Director is the same
as the Chief Executive Officer.

b) Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan resigned on 2 December 2014,

) Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel retired on 30 October 2014.

d) Ms. Hung Sui Hing, Lilian resigned on 26 September 2014.

e) Mr. Cao Zhiwen was appointed on 7 August 2014.

f) Mr. Wang Li was appointed on 26 September 2014 and resigned on 14 February
2015.

9 Mr. Zhang Chenglin was appointed on 26 September 2014 and resigned on 16
June 2015.

h) Ms. Wong Chi Yan was appointed on 16 June 2015.

i) Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria resigned on 26 September 2014.

i) Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth resigned on 26 September 2014,

K) Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick resigned on 26 September 2014.

) Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus retired on 30 October 2014.

m) Mr. Woo Yik Man was appointed on 28 July 2014 and retired on 30 October 2014.

n) Mr. Lo Wing Sang was appointed as on 4 August 2014 and resigned on 19
November 2014.

0) Mr. Chan Chi Tong, Kenny was appointed on 26 September 2014,

p) Mr. Lai Changming was appointed on 26 September 2014 and resigned on 16
June 2015,

Q) Mr. Chen Kwok Wang was appointed on 19 November 2014,

r Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert was appointed on 16 June 2015.

14. EEMeRIEEEHFAL(E)

EEMe(E)
g

R

a) BRERLEAENR_ZT—RE~NA T NBEZR
F-REGEENAAEEESLKCE - &
SRR E B THRARAER o

b) BARELEENZE—NE+-_A-HEHE -

o) FEREAR-ZT—NF+A=1THRE -

d) HEIRHZ TR =T —MFNA =+ NBBHT °

e) BEXGEER—T—NMFNALRAEERE -

f) FREER=_ZTE—NFLA=+"BEZ
£ WR=ZF-—RF=A+HBEE -

g REAMEENR-T—MFNA - +RNAEER
£ WRZFE—RFATRBEEHE -

N ESRELR-E-RFAATAABEE-
) EMBEER-E-MEAASTABRE -
) ARKSEERSB-MEAA S TRARE -
N OBRTRER-B-MEAASTRARE
) AREBEAR-T-METASTERE-

m) AR AEER —T-—NFEA - +/\BHEE
£ YR=F—MFETA=1THRE

n) BKEREER - ZE-—NWFNANBEE
£ YR=ZF—MFE+—A+NBEHE

o) REREENR_FT-—NFAA_TNAEE
-

P BERELR-F-MEAA—+AAES
ff - BR-F-RERATRERE -

Q) REREENR_F—MNF+—A+LBEZR
F

N EECAER _Z-—RFATNBEEE-
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14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

14. EEMeRIEEEHFAL(E)

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED)
Key management personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel, including directors’
remuneration, was as follows:

FEEHAR
TEEEASHE(BRESM)OT ¢

2015 2014
—EB-—FREF —ZT—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e FUEEMET 3,360
Discretionary bonus E*]'I*?EZI 221
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RIRAE AT IR 91
3,672
Five highest paid individuals TEEEHFAL
The five highest paid individuals include 3 directors (2014: 3 REBEZZT—AFSA=+THIEFE -

directors) of the Company during the year ended 30 June 2015. The
remuneration paid to the remaining 2 individuals (2014: 2 individuals)
during the year ended 30 June 2015 was as follows:

AN o oV R
o BsTEA
"!’; RGBT RIS

N 2 \ \

‘highest paid employees wh

dng band Is as follows: .=
\

AEREFATEEIEARAER(Z
T—F :3REE) - REE_T—1F
ANAZTHELEEE  AHT2EERRER
AB(ZZ—F : 228 EBEAB)L
RIFBZAT

=

2015 2014
—E-AfF —EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET

1,122 . 854
77 72
33 42
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14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 14. EEMeRAEGREFAL(E)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED)

Senior management EREEE
The emoluments of the senior management of the Company are within AAAEREREREOFHMN T AT & :
the following band:
Number of employees
EEAE
2015 2014

—E-EF —T-F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,00047T -:
For the years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014, no emolument was paid RBEE_ZT—FHAFEK_ZFT—WUFA
by the Group to the directors, key management personnel or any of the =THLEEE  AEEVERES - =
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining ZEBABRAAEaHEERER—
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors, B HERME - EARINAZSEE SN
key management personnel and the five highest paid employees ARNEBBNER S EERAE - REE
had waived or had agreed to waive any emoluments during the years —E—RAFR_FT—WNFESNA=1HIE
ended 30 June 2015 and 2014, FE HMEEE FEEBABXAA

REFHEENEXRAEREEANE -
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%éﬁj%ﬁ% M:.l' %I For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE—E—RESNA=1THILFE
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - BRER®E
The Group xEKE
Furniture ~ Equipment
and and Motor Computer Leasehold
fixtures machinery vehicles equipment  improvement Total
HAREE  RERME RE ElR% G HELE st

HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thr AL THT THT Th ThT

Cost; KA
Asat 1 July 2013 RZZ-=%+A—H 2229 12,337 17,663 - - 32,229
Additions NE 300 703 2,486 - - 3,489
Disposals L& - (4 (1,018 = = (1029)
As at 30 June 2014 and RZZ-RERA=TER

1July 2014 —Z-mF+A-A 2629 13,036 19,131 - - 34,696
Addtions nE 1,046 1,906 5,380 14 1,800 10,146
Acouired on acouistion of  PAURBERB A AIRE IRER

subsidiaries 54 43 - - 212 309
Written off ik (1,262) (1,124) B E . (2,386)
Disposals irf:= - (85) 437) S = (492)
As at 30 June 2015 RZE-REXA=1H 2,367 13,806 24,074 14 2,012 42,273

Accumulated depreciation: EHTE :

Asal 1 duly 2013 R-F-=F+H-H 2,187 9,720 7,282 4 - 19,149
harge for the year FEZH 47 635 4,480 = - 5,162
Whitten off on disposals R ER R , < (e = = (700)
As at 30 June 2014 and R-Z-MERA=ZTER
1 July 2014 = ' : 23611
Charge for the year =5 6,148
Wiitten off (2,143
Disposalls = (358)

As at 30 June 2015

Carrying amount:
0 June 2015

—
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y¥  BERDMH(E)
(CONTINUED)

The Company b. /N1
Equipment
and machinery
R R R
HK$'000
AT
Cost: RN :
As at 1 July 2013, 30 June 2014 and 1 July 2014 R-ZBE—=F+A—H —Z—NWF
ANAZ+TEERZE—NF+A—H -
Additions NE 58
Written off Hfi (7)
As at 30 June 2015 R=—ZB—RFX<A=1+H 51
Accumulated depreciation: HETiE -
As at 1 July 2013, 30 June 2014 and 1 July 2014 RZFE—=FtH—R8 —T—@0mF
ANA=+BR=_ZF—NFtHA—H
Charge for the year FEIW
As at 30 June 2015 R-ZE—HF<A=TH 3
Carrying amount: BRMEE
As at 30 June 2015 R-ZE—AFX<A=1+H 48
As at 30 June 2014 RZZE—WFA=1+H -
16. GOODWILL 16. @&
The Group A5KME
2015
—E—fF
HK$’000
FExT
Cost: AR :
At 1 July 2014 R-_T—MFE+H—H
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34) AUk BE BB A F) M 2= A (FIE34)
At 30 June 2015 R-ZB-—HFAA=1+H
Accumulated Impairment: Z5HHE -
At 1 July 2014 R-ZZE—MFE+HA—H
Impairment for the year FERIAE
At 30 June 2015: R=ZB-—HFA=+H:
Net carrying amount BREFHE
At 30 June 2015 R=ZB-—RFAKA=1+H
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e IR R M
16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment Tests for CGU Containing Goodwill

Goodwill acquired has been allocated for impairment testing purposes
to the following CGU:

- AUTO

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if
there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

Note:

The recoverable amount of the AUTO CGU is determined based on the value-in-use
calculation under the income approach, which includes the discounted cash flows sourced
from the financial budgets approved by the management covering a 5-year period, and the
post-tax discount rate of approximately 15% that reflects current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the AUTO CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the expected revenue from
existing and potential customers throughout the budget period. The cash flows beyond that
five-year period have been extrapolated using a steady 3% per annum growth rate. The
growth rate does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the market.

The Group received notices on early terminations from the owners of several auto beauty
centres after the date of the Acquisition. Although the Group could be able to apply certain
wavier to relax the termination, the management decided to act upon the requests from
the owners after i) seeking legal advice on relevant rules and regulation and i) accessing
the future benefit of these auto beauty centres. Accordingly, the management considered
] revenue generated from AUTO will be affected and certain adjustments were made
o the cash flow projections to reflect the current status. The recoverable amount of the
AUTO CGU was approximately HK$8,530,000 below: the carrying amount of the AUTO
CGU. Therefore, the management considered that an impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately HK$8,530,000 was recqgnised_qyr@ the year ended 30 June 2015.
VN

The recoverable amount of the ﬁ@ J @Sggced‘to thg valuation report
i sional valuer.

follows:
r

{ \i
au-
Budgeted market share : %&a

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

16. W& (&)

BERENReEEBARENS

WEsHBE O REUNTREELEM
AERE R A&

- AUTO

rEEesFAAK(HETRBREE
BEHIRRE) EATE TR BBER
Al e

B EE -

AUTOR & = 4 B 2 T IR El & 28 T IR IR A UE AR Y
FEREEFEIANETE - AREREEEEMEZR
ERFHRZHREENERARESR - MKEE
R H4916% R BRIE T 5 ¥ S0 B E R HAUTOR &
EEEMEERRE 2 °

RIEEHE 2 RS RBR D ER B EEE R 2 EH
RERBEREPHREMEL - BEAFHZRESRE
RAEESBHFIR R RS - ZEEIL RBHTIS
ZEHFIRER -

ANEBEUEE 2 BRI AEAEERPOETRE TR
ﬁ’\‘hsnuﬁm"* RN 5 [ A DA R A — E MO RER AR

C BEEREREFNESERITE ) EZ AN
%EE%IJJE%D i) 5 5 LR SR AR O Y R SR Fl| 2 )%
2ER - At ' ERERABAUTOELR K BER
@JE@E WHIBRSRIEAELE THRE - URBE AT

E5 o LrtBHRAUTOR S E L BN 2 B S BERE

. aﬁﬁfﬁﬂma 530,000/ 7T « Ellt - EBRERANE
E-P—REAAS+ B EARREERESE

#J8,530,000 BT e
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. | S E
The Group FEE
Customer
relationship
EFBAE
HK$'000
FET
Cost A
At 1 July 2014 R-_ZE—MFE+HA—H =
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34) Bl Ui B B /B 1 B i 2= AE (B9 5E34) 1,118
At 30 June 2015 (Note) R=-ZB—HFXA=+HKF) 1,118
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss 23t 8 R R {EEE
At 1 July 2014 M-ZZE—MFE+HA—H =
Amortisation for the year F 56
At 30 June 2015 R=Z-—RFA=+H 56
Net carrying amounts REFE
At 30 June 2015 R-B-—HFAA=1H 1,062
The economic useful life of recognised intangible assets are as follows: BREREFLEE L &BEREIRMT :
Useful
Intangible assets economic life
BEEE Al AR B EH
Customer relationship ZP#% 5 years 54
Note: B & -
The Customer relationship has been allocated to the AUTO CGU for impairment testing HRBENZER @ BEEBEE S ZAUTORESE
purposes. L o
As at 30 June 2015, the recoverable amount of intangible assets is determined based NZE—RFNA=1H  BEEEZWOLEEIK
on the value-in-use calculation under the income approach, which has been referenced S EB N (HEN LSRRG AR A FIRBIASES
to the valuation report prepared by Norton Appraisals Limited, an independent valuer. HEREEAEAMRENGEEREMEE - BB
Management considered that intangible assets are not impaired as there was no material REELEETERE  ARWESER S RREH
difference in the recoverable amount of intangible assets between the date of the RAOBEBEAEA KRB SBEINFEERAER

Acquisition and the end of the reporting period.
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. REBAFIMER
The Company b. /N
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEMRG - KAE -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK /B8 X RI3RIR 20
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTFT /8 A R 5RIE 93
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free el (FELRT) BT B A B3k 18 A g i -
and recoverable/(repayable) on demand. Tt E RN ESREWE (BE) o
As at 30 June 2015, details of the Company's principal subsidiaries are NR-ZE—FAENAE=1TH ' AR RITE
as follows: MEAREWT
Percentage of equity
Place and date of Issued/paid up/ interest attributable
Name of Subsidiary incorporation/acquisition registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BRT/ AN RELRA
WEAREH ML KL% A BY/EmBRA BHEEAN TEEHR
Direct Indirect
B Mg

% %

Si\ver Marker Limited (“Silver Maker') \'\.‘ The B\/I 21 May 2012 100 - Investment holding

ek
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

18. RIB A BAYES (8)

The Company (continued) EAF ()
Percentage of equity
Place and date of Issued/paid up/ interest attributable
Name of Subsidiary incorporation/acquisition registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BRfT/ KN F R
WEA R A AN S Yk BY AR BEATL TERH
Direct Indirect
B B
% %
Go Millon The BVI, 3 October 2014 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
BE EBERRES (E REEKR
—Z-META=H
Elite Hong Kong, 31 March 2015 HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
Fiite &% —2-1F=A=1-H 18T REER
Champion Auto Club Limited Hong Kong, 31 March 2015 HK$2 - 100 Provision of car beauty
services
EEERERAA A ZT-RF=RA=1-H 2B REBEEDRYE
Champion Auto (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, 31 March 2015 HK$100 = 85 Provision of car beauty
services
Champion Auto (Hong Kong) Limited &5 —E-RE=A=1—AH 100/87T REREEARS
Notes: k=S
(@ The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of the (@ ERINHEEFRAA AN EBARFEREEES

directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

(b) In addition, the directors of the Group made an assessment as at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 12 and at the end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the
directors, there is no subsidiary that has non-controlling interest individually that is
material to the Group and therefore no information is disclosed for the non-wholly

owned subsidiary.

BEYEANFRENASEBEEFEEZZ
DZARENBAT - EFERA - FIHEM
MBARZFBERSABRITE

b O AREEFERREREBHBRE
HRIFE125%E A RREPRIEHTE - ES
B WEEEFERERER M= H A%
BEANMEBEAR - FHLYEEEFZEN
BRRZEH -
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19. INVENTORIES 19. &8
The Group xEKE
2015 2014
—E-ERF —E4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. Y S EERIE
The Group TEE
2015 2014
—E-EHF —ET—HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THExT FAT

Generally no credit period is granted to the Group’s customers. Service
fee from Environmental and Cleaning and AUTO are due upon the
presentation of the invoices. The following is an ageing analysis of trade
receivables presented based on the invoice date:

AEE-—RIBETEPEEY - RE
KBBRRAUTORBENIREZZEZRZ
B REZAHREINE ZRUEFIAR
BT

2015 2014
—e-5E —T-MmF
HK$'000 HK$000

FHT FHT

0-30 days
31-60 days ;

61-90days |
Over éO déys /

ation of oollect?ili
judg
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20.

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Age of receivables that are past due but not
impaired

For the year ended 30 June 2016 HE —ZT—RAFNA=THILFE

20. BEHEUTERIA(4])

0-30 days 0&30H

31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61290H
Over 90 days A0 H

B @R {8 3 K i E A FE W SR IR AR e
2015 2014
—®-HE  -T-QmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T8 T
29,155
1,893
1,465
957
33,470

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. The management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there have not been a
significant change in credit risk and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over those
palances.

The amount of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired is
the same as above ageing analysis of trade receivables.

EBHEYRRENERRIBEL RS S
EASERFRERFLHENBLR
F-EBRERRE aRNEERRLES
REF  AERKDBEE/AIEEKD -
WHARZEERIELBERE - A
B3 ek SRR A (T o

EBHEYRRENESREIGHAS R
B FXE 5 R IAR BRI DT AR o

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21. & AfiREREMEKRIE
RECEIVABLES
The Group x5KE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Deposits (Note i) e (5T 10,733 2,405
Prepayments TR RIA 1,008 408
Other receivables (Note ii) H b WSk IA (Bt i) 5,685 150
17,426 2,963
Less: Impairment loss (Note iii) B R EE (B R (5,660) -

11,766 2,963
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21. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21. #&¢& - BfiZEREMEKSRIE

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) (#8)
The Company b. 3/
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—gF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER THT
Prepayments B I8 184
Deposits %e =
184
Note: FeE
0] The Group has tendered for certain environmental services contracts and (0] R=ZZF—RE~A=1H  A5EECREZESE
deposited sums of approximately HK$2,000,000 (2014: approximately FIRRIREE L - W F1E % 492,000,000
HK$1,600,000) as tender deposits as at 30 June 2015. The tender deposits are JL(ZZE—PH4F : 491,600,000/ 7)) {EBIHIZ
interest-free and repayable at the end of the tender. BE o MRERES AT L - ERNBEER
sl o
The Group has deposited sums of approximately HK$4,460,000 and RZZT—RFEANA=1TH AEEREHE
approximately HK$1,000,000 as purchase deposits for purchase of motor car BEREERARKEEREMS R NBEE
cleaning materials and purchase of a trademark respectively as at 30 June 12 & #94,460,0007% 7T & #1,000,0007 7T °
2015. The purchase deposits are interest-free, unsecured and releasable upon ZEBEER S BT E R KRR E R
completion of the purchases according to the agreed terms. TE GRS B R R A o
(i) Included in the other receivables as at 30 June 2015 was a loan receivable of (i) RZZE—RAGEANA=THNECEER+F R
~ approximately HK$4,300,000 due from an independent third party. The amount —Jﬁﬂgl& % = 75 f& 5K 434,300,000 7T °
due is interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand. The loan receivable was \ ZERWERBTTE BEEBERIRENRE

subsequently settled in full before the reportin!g date.

B - ZBBERERENRE AR RAE

e Group recognised the impairment —HFENA=ZTBELEE  ~£EH

@\'f.or the purchase of motor car . H= REBEZMEERES
& /. Having considered that the o EEF|TEE
to the Group in accordance

(i)

motor car cleaning materiel
with the agreed terms-ﬁn@ﬁ
{0 the Group fom 1

e‘épite the Group’s continuous
‘now in the progress of taking legal
trectors are of the opinion that there

Ny

) Group 'recognised the impairm
proximately RMB960,000 app I
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22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

For the year ended 30 June 2016 HE —ZT—RAFNA=THILFE

22. & RBITRER

The Group FEHE
2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Cash and cash equivalents (Note (a)) ReRREEEY
(B aE() 37,382
Restricted bank deposits (Notes (a) and () SR EIRITIERR
(P 5E(a) R (b)) 8,905
46,287
The Company
2015 2014
= —TIF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T

Cash and cash equivalents HeRES%EY 12,898 12,173

Notes: B &

(@) As at 30 June 2015, the effective interest rates per annum on bank deposits, (@ R=ZZF—RAFE~A=+A8 BHEAN TR
with maturities of less than three months and over three months but less than —EAAMRITERRIFAA=BEAL LR
twelve months were approximately 0.05% (2014: 0.35%) and nil (2014: 0.37%) TR+ ZEAMBITERNERER XS5
respectively. #80.05%(ZF—M4F : 0.35%) RE(=ZF

—M%F : 0.87%) °
(o)  The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks as security for due ) XRHERITERIERBITHENRS -

performance under several environmental service contracts. Included in restricted
bank deposits, amount of approximately HK$1,126,000 (2014: HK$2,395,000)
related to environmental service contracts with expiry date over one year after the
end of the reporting period and amount of approximately HK$6,596,000 (2014
HK$6,510,000) with expiry date within one year after the end of the reporting
period.

RERBITETRERBAENNER - 3
STARBHRITERNREMS " EFL
1,126,000% 7T (= F— U4 : 2,395,000/ 7T )
FRNREPELEE B R —FRIBNRE
RFSA 4+ B#96,596,00087C( —F—PU4E :
6,510,000 7t ) BIlF kA& A& E B g
—FERE|EE -
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23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. BHEMRIEA
The Group xEKE
2015 2014
—2-1F —T—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Trade payables =N 7,848 4,289
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables as at 30 June RZE—RAGFER_FT—EHF A=
2015 and 2014: =K %%ﬁéﬁﬂlﬁﬂﬁﬂ’% AT
2015 2014
—2-RfF —T—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBTT
0-30 days 0%30H 3,972
31-60 days 31260H 317
61-90 days 61290H =
Over 90 days HBiEmo0H -
4,289
The credit period on purchases of certain goods and services ranged REETERMEBNEREMN RS
om due on presentation of invoice to 60 days. Included in the BENBEHENZC0R - KAEBERZ
Group's trade payables as at 30 June 2015 was an amount due 10 - E-RAFANA=TBHESRMARERLH

Niko Cleaning Services Limited (“Niko”), of approximately HK$794,000
(2014 approximately HK$1 12\000). N

X =
heong Allan (“Mr. Fan”),

794,000 L (ZF— P : 4112,000
'.m)ﬁéﬁ%ﬂm/ﬁ/;‘%ﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi(m

s
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mEMBHERME

24. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER 24. Eil&H - CltiRe R EME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 HE —ZT—RAFNA=THILFE

PAYABLES A
The Group AEFE
2015 2014
—®-H5F -—TpF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Accruals (Note) g 16,275
Deposits received Biuze 667
Other payables H b e ROR 143
17,085
The Company
2015 2014
—EB-AfF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Accruals FEETER 79
Other payables HAb e FRIA -
79
Note: Bt e -

As at 30 June 2015, included in the Group's accruals of approximately HK$9,762,000
(2014: HK$6,864,000), HK$3,668,000 (2014: HK$4,276,000), HK$2,266,000 (2014:
HK$1,878,000) and HK$65,000 (2014: HK$491,000) were accrued salaries, provision
for long service payment, provision for untaken paid leave and provision for claims

respectively.

R-ZZE—HAFEANA=1A8  AEEREFERFTH
9,762,000 ;L (= — W4 : 6,864,000/ 7T )
3,668,000/ T (=T — P 4 : 4,276,0007 T )
2,266,000t (ZZF — M4 : 1,878,000t ) &
65,0007 7T ( —ZE—PI4F : 491,000/ 7T) DRI AT &
e RERBEZAEE  REREFRERER
RERE -
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For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

25. BANK BORROWING 25, SRITH®
The Group xEKE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TFHET
Bank loan: IRITEFK
Secured (Notes (a), (b) and (c)) BB (@) ~ (o) & () 1,278
Secured term loan from bank that repayable AR AT B NEE R A K IE
within the period of; RITEBEN ¢
— Less than 1 year - —FR 1,015
— More than 1 year but within 2 years - —FREMFA 263
Secured term loan B EEER 1,278
Less: Amount classified as current liability B DR ARBEENFUE
— Secured term loan containing a - HEREREEERD
repayment on demand clause B TERERK (1,278)
Amount classified as non-current liability DR AIERE B ENFIE -
Notes: B EE -
@) The bank term loan with outstanding balance of approximately HK$263,000 (2014: (@) RZZE—RAEARNA=1H ' ' REELEHH

X by the Company.

Best Lending Rate, and staue at 6. O%dun

"‘f\*“\\t\

S

©

HKS1 ,278,000) as at 30 June 2015 was secured by corporate guarantee provided

(b) The loan with a financial institution amounted to épproximateby HK$263,000 (2014 17 - ==
HK$1,278,000) as at 30 JunQ\ZO% carri q interest at 1.0% per annum over the R 5 7
the year ended 30 June 2015. -

263,000/ 75 (=2 — 94 1,278,000/ %) H)
$RTE BB RUAR A TR G 2 AR B
}ﬁi °

—AFANA=1H - B—HSmEE
\‘263000575(_3 PO 4
=T —hFANA=F

H1.0%5T S 0 F
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ﬁéﬁjﬁ*ﬁ% M:.I--ELI For the year ended 30 June 2015 B E —E—RENA=1THILFE

26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26. MEHEBRIE

The Group FEHE

Leasing arrangements HEZH

The Group leased certain of its motor vehicles under finance leases. NEERERMEHRERES T 58

Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments

BEEERIE BEEERERE
2015 2014 2015 2014

—e-EF -—T-ME —B-EF —FT-NE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT  TET FER TR

Amounts payable under BRI E & e
finance leases: HIZRIA
Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year, F_EFERF
inclusive (BIEEEMT)
Less: Future finance charges B BEREER

Present value of finance leases ~ BVEMAEIHE

Less: Amount due for settlement & : —FE RN E|EREE
within one year RIFRIE

Amount due for settlement —F 1B R HEEMNFIR
after one year
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%éﬁj%ﬁ% M:.I-H For the year ended 30 June 2015 BiE=—ZE—RESA=1RHILEE

27. DEFERRED REVENUE 27. BEW S
The Group xEKE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Car beauty package TEEREER -
Car beauty membership ABEERGSE >
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HREBERENSITA
Current liabilities mEAE -
Non-current liabilities EmMBEE -
Deferred revenue represents cash received or receivables from the BEW SRR T E XD RS A HE IR
sales of packages and membership of car beauty services in advance BEZRRSENEWKBIRE

of services being rendered.

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. EERIA
The Group xEH

e components of deferred tax balances recognised in the Zl-‘ﬁf&t’fgﬁ’\ iR B MBI R TR
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements mﬁk%ﬂlﬁﬁiﬁ% fn REZFFINT :
thereon during the current and prior years are as follows:

aluation of

S

SHELA—B .
%%?DB%(MT?“

1 July 2013 Lo
arged to profit or IBSS (




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28.

29.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)
The Group (continued)

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had approximately HK$8,583,000
(2014: HK$151,000) accumulated tax losses not recognised as
deferred tax asset. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for the
financial reporting purposes.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 i E —ZE—AF/NA=1TRHILFE

28. RIEFRIA(4E)

FRME ()

MN-B—RENA=1H ~EBHLELH
8,583,000/ 70 (= — M4 : 151,000/
T0) I 2R IBE B R R A EEHE
BE - ARARERARKEFIRE &
WERREBBERRLEREEE °

AT RRARMEREBEELTHRS
ERAT

2015 2014
—E—REF —ZE—[O4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIBEE 1,127
Deferred tax asset FETHTEE (12)
1,115
BOND 29. BHF
The Group and the Company EEERELF
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Unlisted corporate bond JELETRRIES m:

On 20 November 2014, the Company issued an unlisted corporate
bond at a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 which is unsecured,
bears a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum and is fully redeemable by
the Company after 7 years from the issue date at its principal amount
of HK$10,000,000.

The effective interest rate of the unlisted corporate bond is
approximately 8.52%.

R-Z—ME+—H=+H8  KAA%H%
177K & 4 %8 /410,000,000 ;LA JE £ TH
NEfES  %ESHAEER - ZEEF
REF7% TR BEITHRREFEAR
AAR AR E AR £ 510,000,000 7T
EHFER -

FEMRBEHFBERFERLR8.52% °
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e IR
29. BOND (CONTINUED)

The Group and the Company (continued)

The movement of the unlisted corporate bond is set out as below:

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

29. R¥F(##)

FRERELTF ()
FLEMRBRESZEBEIIOT :

HK$,000
FBTT
Unlisted corporate bond issued on R-ZE—NFE+— A - +HETH
20 November 2014 FEMAFIES 10,000
Transaction costs for issue of the unlisted BITIE LR BEFRZ FHA
corporate bond (800)
Initial amortised cost as at 20 November 2014 RN-E—E+—F =+ B RE#HAR A 9,200
Imputed interest charged HEMBEZ L 458
Less: Coupon interest payable B ENEE (408)
As at 30 June 2015 N-—ZE—RESXA=TH 9,250
30. WARRANTS 30. RERiEE
The Group and the Company FRERELF

On 20 December 2014, the Company issued 2,000,000,000 unlisted
warrants at the subscription price of HK$0.02 per warrant, which
itled the holder of each warrant to subscribe for one ordinary share
e Company at an exercise price of HK$0.166 per share at any time

after three months from the date of the Subscription Agreement.
No warrant has been exercised up‘\tgj"the date of approval of the
consolidate financial statg ts. > S

during a period of 12 months commencing from the date immediately ‘

R-ZE—mME+=—A=+H AAT
NREEETNRIREE002HE LET
2,000,000,0001% JE_E T R HERE - fE T
S RBIEBHE AEFIR EERE TS
HE=EA® AR+ (@A BRERNE

(a7 B LATTE E B AR0. 166 B TRE AR

LR o BRAr e M mA AL

o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

Each issued and unissued ordinary share of the Company of HK$0.01 each was
subdivided into 10 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each.

(b) On 17 November 2014, the Company conducted a 1-for-10 share subdivision.
Each issued and unissued ordinary share of HK$0.001 of the Company was
subdivided into 10 ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each.

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. ¥
The Company b. 3/ |
The movements of share capital of the Company are as follows: KARIR AL BT ¢
Number
of shares Nominal value
R E EfE
Notes HK$
FiE BT
Authorised: HE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREECOVELZ @R
As at 1 July 2013 N_E—=%+HF—H 10,000,000,000 100,000,000
Share subdivision 14 (a) 90,000,000,000 =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each BREE0.001ELZ LK
As at 80 June 2014 and 1 July 2014 RZZT—WFERA=FH
k—ZE—mFE+HB—H 100,000,000,000 100,000,000
Share subdivision i 4 ) 900,000,000,000 -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each FREE0.0001E T EimAk
As at 30 June 2015 R-ZE—hF~A=1H 1,000,000,000,000 100,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE0.0ET LB
As at 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 R-Z—=F A=1+BEK
—ET—=%+H—H 100,000,000 1,000,000
Share subdivision 14 (8) 900,000,000 -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FREE0.00TETLZ LB
As at 80 June 2014 and 1 July 2014 RZZ—NERA=TAR
—“E—MFEL+H—H 1,000,000,000 1,000,000
Share subdivision B4 b) 9,000,000,000 -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each &R {E0.0001% T 2 LB
As at 30 June 2015 R=ZE-HAF~HA=1H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Notes: BisE
(a) On 23 December 2013, the Company conducted a 1-for-10 share subdivision. (@) RIE—=F+_A=+=8  KRaET

— BRI - ARBEZRAEE0OIETT
ZEBETRABRTERRFASEREE
0.001 8Tz THEEA

(b) R=ZF—WE+—A++tH  KRR#ET—
B+ BRI 4R o AR FE R E{E0.001 B T
ZEBTRABTEARFAASTREE
0.0001# 702 A% T imA% o
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE =&

—HRFEANA=TRLEE

32. RESERVES 32. &
The Company b. /N
Share Accumulated Warrant Total
premium losses reserve equity
AR
B 138 ES i e S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FAL FHIT
Asat 1 July 2013 NZZE—=FtF—H 24,360 (10,259) - 14,101
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FREE R 2 HEREE
for the year (896) - (896)
Dividend paid (Note 12) RS (FizE12) (2,000) - (2,000)
As at 30 June 2014 and RZZE-—WFRA=tHK
1 July 2014 —mWFE+A—H 22,360 (11,155) - 11,205
Issue of warrants BITRIRKERE - - 40,000 40,000
Transaction costs for issue of warrants 2172 IAEFRI A 5 A - - (500) (500)
Loss and total comprehensive FAEEREAERRARE
loss for the year - (12,130) - (12,130)
As at 30 June 2015 R-E-RFAA=1H 22,360 (23,285) 39,500 38,575

The share premium account of the Company represents share issued
at a premium. Under the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is distributable to
its shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be dlstrlbutsd the Company will be in a

position to pay off its debts,as ﬂqeyiian, ue in the ordinary course of
- 2N N

g

business. \-;\\

% (ﬂ-reserves available for

A\
e with the_ Qompanles Law
Articles of Association of the .

"\TZ\E

AR AR R BRI R BT
%o REESHEAPIB0E AR

ARBN RO EERAIMED KT AR

BR - EEBZBEORBREZAR A

EEEHEAREHBRETHNE
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

33. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 33. A\ FHA AELEE
COMPANY
The loss attributable to owners of the Company includes a loss of AKARBEAEARMNEBEEBEERY
approximately HK$12,130,000 (2014: approximately HK$896,000) 12,130,000/ 7t ( ZZF—PU4F : £7896,000
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. BIL)  ERARRIFBIHRERANEIE ©
34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 34. KIBME AR
Elite Car Services Limited Elite Car Services Limited
On 31 March 2015, Go Million acquired 100% equity interest in Elite RZZE—RAF=A=+—"H a8
Car Services Limited for a cash consideration of HK$5,000,000. Elite ] % X {& 5,000,000 7 JT Y% B Elite Car
Car Services Limited, through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged Services Limited 100% #% # ° Elite Car
in auto beauty services, including auto detailing services, and its own Senvices Limitedi B BEMB AR EELEER
brand name “Champion Auto Club” in Hong Kong. BAEBEREEERE® [{EREE
ARG - BIEAEZERRS -
Acquisition-related costs of approximately of HK$634,000 have been U BE AR RE BK, 2N 49634, 00074 T B IR FF N FE
recognised as expense in the year and included in the administrative RAERAY MEAITHRY °
expenses.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at RUEEEIEHE - EWER HRIEE R
the date of the Acquisition and the goodwill arising therefrom, are as BEZATENELEZEENT :
follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before Fair value
combination adjustment Fair value
?ﬁﬂﬁlﬂﬁﬁ
REBEAD
ZIREE - AFEAR AYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT THT
Net liabilities acquired: FriiE 2 B EFA -
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRR 309 - 309
Intangible assets (Note 17) mR A E(MEE17) = 1,118 1,118
Trade receivables B 5 e GRIE 73 - 73
Deposits, prepayments and B~ FENFIAREMER
other receivables EOLE| 1,232 - 1,232
Bank overdraft RITEX \ (103) = (103)
Accruals, deposits received and EErER - BdURE MEM
other payables FE( 3R (339) = (339)
Deferred revenue IR 6,319) - (6,319)
Amount due to a shareholder FEATRR B FRIE (2,800) - (2,800
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE = (185) (185)
(7,947) 933 (7,014)
Add: Amount due to a shareholder i RKEEEBSE TS
assigned to Go Million as 82 BN AR I8
at the date of the Acquisition 2,800
Non-controlling interests AR 2 55
Goodwill arising on the Acquisition WHESETRE S 2 iE 9,159
Total consideration BRE 5,000
mmeRERAT 52015 147
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34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

34. IrARPRE 25 ()

Elite Car Services Limited (continued)

Elite Car Services Limited (&)

HK$'000
FAT
Satisfied by: ATH A RT A -

Cash He 5,000

Net cash outflow arising on the Acquisition: WEEEHEEE 2 RS REFE :
Consideration paid in cash LB e T2 RE (5,000
Add: Bank overdraft e ERITE X (108)
(5,108)

The non-controlling interest (15%) in Champion Auto (Hong Kong)
Limited (85% owned by Elite Car Services Limited indirectly) recognized
at the acquisition date was measured by reference to the fair value
of the non-controlling interests and amounted to approximately
HK$55,000.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Elite Car Services Limited
is attributable to the network of its service points, the experience
of its management and staff and the prospect of the auto beauty
service business in Hong Kong as well as PRC. The recognition of the
intangible assets has been referenced to the valuation report issued by
Norton Appraisals Limited, an independent professional valuer.

The goodwill arising on the Acquisition is not deductible for tax
purpose.

" ts of the  Group
e . mately HK$1 588,000

Sroup’s revenue and
1od betvveen the date of the
IO

and apprommats;y HK@J?,=
Iosses for the year respecﬁ?f?w\@R

S(EJune 2015 would have b '
nd‘tﬁe consolidated loss. for

up's turnover for the yzg
ximately HK$205,7

R Uz & B 2 #E 52 H) Champion Auto (Hong
Kong) Limited( fElite Car Services Limited
B4 5 8o% M o ) FE 1 AR ME 25 (16%) T
KR2ZFEREZNATEFE - RO
55,0008 7T °

U B Elite Car Services Limited = 4 2 F5 &
AFAREREEAE  HEEERE
TITHRBEAEERTRBITEREER
FERNA R BEEESC2EB ISR
EHEMEARERTEERARHAD
HEFRERER o

WEERESNEESTRENRE A
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

Defined contribution plan

The Group offers two retirement schemes which together cover all
permanent staff,

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (‘“MPF
Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The contribution to the MPF Scheme is calculated based on the rules
set out in the MPF Ordinance which is 6% on the basic salary of the
relevant employee subject to a specific ceiling of HK$1,500.

Another scheme is defined contribution in nature and established
under trust and is registered under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the schemes are held
independently of the Group’s assets in separate trustee administered
funds.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$4,474,000 (2014: HK$3,784,000) for the year ended 30 June
2015 represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the plans.

35.

BRFRFILE
EmptRatE

AEBIRHMBERRGE - ZF
FREMBERMET -

REBEREBERFEREE A ENERDI R
BRERBBREREHETRMERTES
gl([atEesrtall) BRESHIEER
AEBEEDH  UXFEAEGNES
A - REBESHIRA  BEXRE
BE %8 ARBART AL ZAEEIE
B - REB R TE S 5 BIZAARER
E-BEERREBERESHIELREMR
AR e AW EOR U ST B E R F E
FEfTEOESR -

SR TE 5T B FUR R TE S (& B FTE AR A
(AEBEEELREGE5%)TE  ERTE
R &1,5008 7T °

A BEETEIAERHAME - BEFET
R AREBEFEBBERAGEGEZ
i RfEEEEAREEED RMAEXT
NEBRESBIFRA -

REBEE-_Z—AFENAZTHILEFE
REEBIBRE N A2 IR R ER N
FSZ 5 BI#)4,474,000/ 7 (Z B — P04 -
3,784,000/%7T) + EAAREBIZTEIRA]
PRI R T2 ST Bl -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj%ﬁ% M:.I--EI For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE—ZE—RESA=THILFE

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

36. EEHRKIE
FREFSEEA

RERERR - AEEETAHEHELE
MEE T AR KEEEFREAEDH

Within one year —FR
Within two to five years —ERFA

BT -
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
1,714
1,714

Operating lease payments represent rental payable for the Group’s
office premise, warehouse and director’'s quarter. Leases are
negotiated for terms of one to three years and monthly rental is fixed
throughout the lease period.

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attract, retain and reward the
eligible persons and to provide the eligible persons an incentive
or reward for their contribution to the Group and by enabling such
persons’ contribution to further advance the interests of the Group.
The Share Option Scheme was adpptgd on 28 May 2013 and shall
be valid and eﬁecnve for a ﬁenod d; n years commencmg from the

rson who has contnbuted ORS

dg _ @%ﬁ S R e/l d|rectors

REBEFREAKERLME 2 FE
REZEEENEMNES - BHREA—
E=F MBAHENHEHRETETE -

37. MRRziERtE

ARABIGRIFRL — ARSI (88
PeiERtEl)) - B ERS| - BB RERS
ERMATRABHAREFELREMNS
ﬁ%Aih#ﬁ@iﬁaM&%“h%
CATHERE - FRAARKE & o
BREFEN _Z-—=FAA_+/\R
KA iﬁ%ﬂﬁ%t#+¢ﬁﬁﬂ




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 30 June 2015 BEZE —ZE—RESNA=TRHILFE

37. MERRIERTEI(4)

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Person
concerned for such period as determined by the board of directors,
being a date not later than ten business days after the offer date by
which the Eligible Person must accept the offer or be deemed to have
declined it, provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the tenth anniversary of the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the
Board to the grantee which the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine, save that such period shall not be more than ten years from
the date of acceptance of the offer (subject to the provisions for early
termination in accordance with the Share Option Scheme).

The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the offer shall be a nominal amount to be determined by the board of
directors.

As at 30 June 2015, the Company had no outstanding options under
the Share Option Scheme, and a total of 1,000,000,000 shares at per
value of HK$0.0001 each (equivalent to 100,000,000 shares at par
value of HK$0.001 prior to the share subdivision as announced on 17
November 2014) (representing 10% of the issued share capital as at
the date of the annual general meeting held on 30 October 2014 and
the date of this annual report), can be issued under the Share Option
Scheme. As at the date of last annual report, the Company had no
outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme, and a total of
1,000,000,000 shares at par value of HK$0.0001 each (equivalent to
10,000,000 shares at par value of HK$0.01 each prior to the share
subdivisions as announced on 17 November 2014 and 23 December
2013) (representing 10% of the issued share capital as at the date of
the annual general meeting held on 31 October 2013 and the date of
the last annual report), can be issued under the Share Option Scheme.
The Company may grant options to specified participant(s) beyond
the 10% limit provided that the options granted in excess of such limit
are specifically approved by the shareholders in general meeting and
the participants are specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought. In seeking such approval, a circular must be sent
to the shareholders containing the required details in accordance with
Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme together with any options
outstanding and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company in issue shall not
exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed under the
GEM Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time.

BRAAERALEMEZNHRHES
IRTE - INGBEEZRREL B
THEZ%E  MABERALTARZAB
2 AR - BAIRERER : E
ZRTERBRESIRAB MRS
Z IR 8B RIB BB AT B R
MR IEZ R AT -

BREA N R E SRS 2R TE LB AA
A HABR P B B AR 4 B AR R R 1 RO i
RITE - Mz PETFRBENERE
At F(RX B ERAERT E MR R LK
SRR

ERANBRNEZHERAR AN RE
A FHTHENEHESTSETE °

RZZE—RHFANA=1+H ' ARQAZ
EREEBETITHENRTHE R
BERAREERETSZETAS X
1,000,000,000 R ({E=E—ME+ A=+

BRITZEREFRSE A MAREB
HAE B 1T RE AN 2 10% ) & A% T {8 0.0001
BLZBRGB(HER-_Z—NF+—A
+-t 8 Az B 5 R4 2 100,000,000
A% = A% E E0.001 B TV IR (D) « A E—
HEFRBE KRR ZBEBRESIET
M4 1) R 1T 15 2 B I K R AR 15 B P
=+ 212517 & 3£ 1,000,000,000 8% (18 & R
TR =Ft+A=+—HBITZBREA
FREEAR LFEREBHBETR
REI10% ) & I T {E0.0001 7 7T 2 I 15
(HER-—Z—NF+—A+tBEER=-ZF
—=F+-_A=-+=B2MHz2RH oIk
Al 10,000,000 1% & % E1E0.01 & T 2 I
B) e RARAMIFEELHEER THE
10%REREENE - IR TEBLEERE
RERENERKREAS FERESE
o8 - MAESK it ErI A AR EE
BRREER S ) o EEK El bR -
ARRINNBIRIFERIFER ETR A 23
%ﬂ%%%%ﬁ&'§$ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HIFFENS o

RIFMEBER &7 TR B OB - &
(R AR 4 s AR AT &) S AR R B (] Eo A
PerEst IR B R A 5178 /Y RE B Y
BREBRNHEE @ KRR TEBEETKD
AT AR 2R AV30% (LB AR AR Rl
FrARFEMRSEDL) -
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For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 37. MEBRHERTEI(HE)
The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of BEEMATAEMR+ A B ™A
the options granted to each Eligible Person (including both exercised ITEHERBIRE(RERERESETE
and outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme) in any 1TE R AR TTER BEARRE ) h 2 21T &S
twelve-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of BITHRMDEE » TEBEARA R D%
the Company. Where any further grant of options to an Eligible Person TTIRAE1% o w#E—FREERALE
would result in excess of such limit shall be subject to the approval of TEEAREG B %RE - AIZBERE AR
the shareholders at general mesting with such Eligible Person and his T LESKREE MBEBAEERAL
associates abstaining from voting. R EEEE A AR ERE o
Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme, the Company has not B e AN AR ST I A SR - KD A EIR
granted any share option. A frT RS AR o

38. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 38. FEBBERH
Additions to property, plant and equipment of approximately HKSNil REBEE—ZT—AFSA=ZTHLEFE -
(2014 approximately HK$1,593,000) were financed by finance leases ERERERN Z2WE  BEMRER
for the year ended 30 June 2015. BARATEHT(ZZE—E : 491,503,000/8

TL) °
39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. BXKiE

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

AREERIREAROEAAFENT

2015 2014

— —E-lmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET

BETEL R RGE
A 5 BRI
ek

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition
of intangible assets contracted for but.
not provided in the consolidated financial

= AN RS
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40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had entered the following material transactions with related
parties during the years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014.

a)

Compensation paid to key management personnel of the Group
are disclosed in Note 14.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group had also
subcontracted certain environmental and cleaning contract
to Niko at subcontracting fee charges of approximately
HK$3,400,000 (2014: approximately HK$448,000). The
transaction with Niko falls under the definition of “continuing
connected transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules and is disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transaction” in the Directors’ Report.

Included in the Group’s trade payables as at 30 June 2015 was
an amount due to Niko of approximately HK$794,000 (2014:
approximately HK$112,000).

On 6 February 2015, the Group entered into the Trademark
Assignment Agreement with Shenzhen Xi Lang Technology
Limited (“Xi Lang”), Xi Lang is owned as to 57.14% by Mr.
Cao Zhiwen who is an executive director of the Company, to
acquire all its rights, title, benefits and interests in the forty three
categories in relation to the trademark “F&ERHABALA” for a
total consideration of HKD1,500.000.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group had paid the
deposit to Xi Lang of approximately HK$1,000,000. Details of
the deposit are disclosed in Note 21.

For the year ended 30 June 2015 HE—ZF

—HRFEANA=THLEE

40. EXHEALRS

ﬁ?ﬁ“‘#&%ﬁl@?l\ﬁﬂ&&i%@l\ DS

BIEFE  AEHES ;ﬁa@az@/\ﬁmm
TERRS °

a)

XN FAREETZEEA S B RN
FAMT 145 5R o

BEZT—RAFH=THL®HF
B AEEREESBEEARAY
34000008 L (=T —HF : 4
4480008 L) DB E TIRE K EZR
BT NE - BHEKR 5 BRE
R EHRBIE0ZAAER [H8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMTE

For the year ended 30 June 20156 = —Z—RAFENA=1THILEFEE

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 41. KRAR
(a) Performance bond (a) BEWHIRE
2015 2014
—B-HF —T-m&F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Guarantees on performance bonds MIREBREE L)

in respect of environmental service B #IRTERY

contracts ER 8,874

The Group had bankers' guarantees on performance bonds
issued for due performance under several environmental service
contracts.

As at 30 June 2015, fixed deposits of approximately
HKS$7,722,000 (2014 approximately HK$8,905,000)
were pledged to banks as security for (i) bank facilities of
approximately HK$5,000,000 (2014: HK$NIl) granted to the
Group; and (ii) bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds
issued.

The effective period of performance bond is based on the

~ service period and the contract terms as specified in these

environmental several environmental service contracts. The
performance bonds may be claimed by customers if services
rendered by the Group fail to meet the standards as specified in
these environmental SQFVICG ohhtr%\ots

‘time be |Hvo véd F%%ﬁ

its employee%r thrﬁj party

\h-
gemmg personal injuries by
nts. In the oplmon of the

|n@t3 are accounted for in 1
lide téd financial statements:

‘ /

AEERBERTE TRERES
MrELMBLORIRERITE
& o

R-ZZE—RFNA=1+H  HF
47,722,000 L (ZF— M F
#98,905,000/8 7T ) B K IR TR T1E
A ER&IRTTRLE 495,000,000
TT(ZF—F : TFL)  K(i)E
B ARTE 2 SRITIER ©

BHVRE 2B BRI R AR5 58
MREFERRE A NOBR
E o AEE R GRS sk =

REBERSA DT ANEE - 8

BEP A BRRBARE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁ%ﬁ% M:J--ELI For the year ended 30 June 2015 B E —E—RENA=1THILFE

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. REHMEER
The Group had no significant events after the end of the reporting NEERREHIRTHEEASZIE o
period.

43. COMPARATIVES FINANCIAL INFORMATION 43. LM EEHE
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with AETLEREFEEHNSHURLS M
current year's presentation. ZESNFE

44. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44. #HERBEEER
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised FEeRN _E—RFT+ATHEBHAER
for issue by the board of directors on 15 October 2015. BRET AR B BT RR ©
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hEMBERE

For the year ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“®-HF —T-NF —T-=F —FT—_F _FB——F
HK$000 HK$000 HKPOOO  HKPO00O  HKPO0O
FET FHBT FBT FHBT FHBT
Results e
Revenue & POPRLPM 193098 194,549 163,598 167,822
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(ER), /5 (27,249) 13,094 3,099 16,154 18,833
Attributable to: AT ZIERE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ =N (27,205) 13,094 3,099 16,154 18,833
Non-controlling interests IR = (44) - - - -
(27,249) 13,094 3,099 16,154 18,833
Dividends paid ERRE 2,000 - 14,216 16,000
As at 30 June
RAB=1H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-fRfF —TF —FT-—=F —T——F —FT——1F
HK$000 HK$000 HKPOOO  HKPO0O  HKPO0O
FET F&TT THET  TAT FBT
s and liabilities 7
127,406 95,990 82,955 73,710
tal liabilities (50,766) (79,441) (72,134)

otal equity

-

%ﬂmary was prepared as if the current’ )

hout ﬂ:@e ﬁnancial'}}éars and Is presente

oiam*@tements.

(42,617)

1,676




Ex:f
PPS International (Holdings) Limited

HERZERARQF

www.hkpps.com.hk
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